

State of Minnesota

Rochester Community and Technical College

July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2022 Affirmative Action Plan

Rochester Community and Technical College 851 30th Ave SE Rochester, MN 55904-4999 (507) 285-7210 or 1-800-247-1296 MN Relay [Phone] 800-627-3529

> jennifer.haug@rctc.edu https://www.rctc.edu/

As requested by Minnesota Statute 3.197: This report cost approximately \$25,500 to prepare, including staff time, printing and mailing expenses.

To request an alternative format of this document, please contact Jennifer Haug (Jennifer.haug@rctc.edu)

Table of Contents

Statement of Commitment	
Executive Summary	
Organizational Profile	
Individuals Responsible for Directing/Implementing the Affirmative Action Plan	
A. President	
B. Affirmative Action Officer	5
C. Affirmative Action Officer Designee(s)	7
D. Human Resources Director or Designee(s) ٤	3
E. Americans with Disabilities Act Title I Coordinator10)
F. Americans with Disabilities Act Title II Coordinator11	1
G. Senior Managers and Facility Executive Team Leaders12	2
H. All Employees	3
Communication of the Affirmative Action Plan14	1
Internal Methods of Communication14	1
External Methods of Communication15	5
Job Category Analysis	5
Determining Availability	
Utilization/Availability Analysis, Establishment of Goals, and Timetables	7
Progress and Personnel Activity Reports	
Identification of Areas for Further Monitoring19	9
Workforce Snapshot 19	£
Personnel Activities)
Progress Reports 20)
Separations)
Corrective Actions and Action-Oriented Programs	L
Corrective Actions	
Other Action-Oriented Programs	
Barriers	
Recruitment and Processes	
Retention	
Methods of Auditing, Evaluating, and Reporting Program Success	
Pre-Employment Review Procedure/Monitoring the Hiring Process	
Pre-Review Procedure for Layoff Decisions	
Other Methods of Program Evaluation	
Policies, Procedures, and Notice	
A. Minnesota State's Equal Opportunity and Non-discrimination in Employment and Education	
Policy, Board Policy 1B.1	7
B. Minnesota State's Report/Complaint of Discrimination/Harassment Investigation and Resolution System Procedure 1B.1.1	n,
C. Minnesota State's Sexual Violence Policy, 1B.3	
C. With the solution of the so	,

D.	Minnesota State's Sexual Violence Procedure, 1B.3.1
E.	Minnesota State's Access and Accommodation for Individuals with Disabilities Policy, 1B.4 51
F.	Minnesota State's Reasonable Accommodations in Employment System Procedure, 1B.0.1 53
G.	Notice Under the Americans with Disabilities Act57
Н.	Rochester Community and Technical College Grievance Procedure Under Title II of the Americans
	with Disabilities Act
١.	Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") Title II (non-employee) Reasonable
	Accommodation/Modification in Public Services, Programs or Activities Request Form
J.	Evacuation Procedure for Individuals with Disabilities or Otherwise in Need of Assistance 60
Appen	dix63
Definit	tions of Terms Used in This Affirmative Action Plan64

ł

Statement of Commitment

Minnesota Administrative Rules, part 3905.0400, subpart 1, item C

This statement reaffirms Rochester Community and Technical College is committed to Minnesota's statewide affirmative action efforts and providing equal employment opportunity to all employees and applicants in accordance with equal opportunity and affirmative action laws.

I affirm my personal and official support of these policies which provide that:

- No individual shall be discriminated against in the terms and conditions of employment, personnel practices, or access to and participation in programs, services, and activities, or subject to harassment, on the basis of race, sex (including pregnancy), color, creed, religion, age, national origin, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, disability, marital status, familial status, status with regard to public assistance, or membership or activity in a local human rights commission.
- The prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex precludes sexual harassment, genderbased harassment, and harassment based on pregnancy.
- This College is committed to the implementation of the affirmative action policies, programs, and procedures included in this plan to ensure that employment practices are free from discrimination. Employment practices include, but are not limited to the following: hiring, promotion, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff, disciplinary action, termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. We will provide reasonable accommodation to employees and applicants with disabilities.
- This College will continue to actively promote a program of affirmative action, wherever females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities are underrepresented in the workforce, and work to retain all qualified, talented employees, including protected group employees.
- This College will evaluate its efforts, including those of its directors, managers, and supervisors, in promoting equal opportunity and achieving affirmative action objectives contained herein. In addition, this College will expect all employees to perform their job duties in a manner that promotes equal opportunity for all.

It is the College's policy to provide an employment environment free of any form of discriminatory harassment as prohibited by federal, state, and local human rights laws. I strongly encourage suggestions as to how we may improve. We strive to provide equal employment opportunities and the best possible service to all Minnesotans.

Date Signed: ミリーレンの **College President:**

Executive Summary

Minnesota Administrative Rules, part 3905.0400, subpart 1, item A

This Affirmative Action Plan meets the requirements as set forth in statute, in Administrative Rule, and by Minnesota Management and Budget (MMB). The plan outlines:

- Affirmative action goals
- Timetables
- Reasonable and assertive hiring and retention methods for achieving these goals

This Affirmative Action review revealed underutilization of the following protected group(s) and Veterans in the following job categories:

Table 1 Workforce Underutilization Analysis of Protected Groups and Veterans

(x indicates the job categories and protected groups and Veterans that have underutilization.)

Job Categories	 Female 	Racial/Ethnic Minorities	Individuals with Disabilities	Veterans
Officials & Administrators				
Professionals				
Technicians				
Protected Services: Non-sworn	X			Y
Paraprofessionals		X		
Office/Clericals		X		
Skilled Craft				
Service Maintenance	X			
Faculty: Temporary		X	X	X
Faculty: Customized Training				
Faculty: Probationary		X		
Faculty: Unlimited	X			

Once complete, information about how to obtain or access a copy of this Plan is provided to every employee of Rochester Community and Technical College. Our intention is to make every employee aware of Rochester Community and Technical College's commitments to affirmative action and equal

employment opportunity. The completed Plan is also posted on the college's website and maintained in the Human Resources Office.

Affirmative Action Officer or Designee	_Date Signed: //////2020
Human Resources Director or Designee	
College President:	_Date Signed: 11430

.

.

,

•

Organizational Profile

Founded in 1915 on a motion by Dr. Charles Mayo to the Rochester School Board, Rochester Community and Technical College (RCTC) is the oldest community college in Minnesota and is a member of Minnesota State. RCTC is in Rochester, the third largest city in the state with a population of 111,402. RCTC is comprised of more than 500 acres and offers more than 70 technical and transfer programs with over 100 degree options. RCTC offers the following degrees: Associate of Arts, Associate of Fine Arts, Associate of Applied Science, Associate of Science, diplomas, and certificates.

RCTC's largest programs include liberal arts and sciences, nursing, health information technology, business, and accounting. Unique programs include advanced hospital nursing assistant, aviation/pilot, cardiovascular invasive specialist, clinical neurophysiology technology, dental hygiene, human services, magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), radiography, surgical technology, veterinary technology, and welding technology.

With more than 300 different online classes, RCTC serves students from near and far. In addition to the many degree options and various delivery methods, RCTC offers students diverse career pathways with other educational institutions. These pathways provide transfer opportunities for students desiring to continue their educational journey.

Award-winning, expert faculty, innovative technology initiatives throughout campus, service-learning programs in the U.S. and around the work and successful partnerships with Rochester business and industry set RCTC apart from many two-year comprehensive colleges.

RCTC is nationally recognized for its men's and women's athletics and its Regional Sports Center with more than 20 athletic fields. Intercollegiate Division III athletics include men's baseball, basketball, football, and wrestling; women's basketball, soccer, softball, and volleyball.

RCTC also offers rich and varied performing arts programs featuring a theater, gallery, art and multimedia studios. Performing arts, sports and fitness, student clubs and organizations provide RCTC students with more options than you would expect at a two-year college. RCTC is large enough to be able to provide countless opportunities for students to take their college experience beyond the traditional classroom. But RCTC is small enough for students to immediately engage and become actively involved.

Fiscal year 2019 duplicated annual (student) headcount was 11,517 with unduplicated credit headcount of 6,983. Fiscal year unduplicated hourly headcount was 4,074 with full-year equivalent (FYE) of 3,514.

Student enrollment for fiscal year 2019 was 40 percent full-time and 60 percent part-time. Enrollment was 61 percent female and 38 percent male for this same time period. Thirty-one percent or 1,533 students enrolled fall semester 2019 were of color. Thirty-six percent or 1,764 students enrolled fall semester 2019 were low income.

Individuals Responsible for Directing/Implementing the Affirmative Action Plan

Minnesota Administrative Rules, part 3905.0400, subpart 1, item B

A. President

Responsibilities

The President is responsible for establishing an Affirmative Action Program, including goals, timetables, and compliance with all federal and state laws and regulations.

Duties

The duties of the President include, but are not limited to:

- Appoint the Affirmative Action Officer or designee and include accountability for the administration of the college's Affirmative Action Plan in his or her position description.
- Take action, if needed, on complaints of discrimination and discriminatory harassment.
- Issue a statement affirming the department's commitment to affirmative action and equal employment opportunity and ensure the statement is shared with to all employees.
- Make decisions and changes in policies, procedures or physical accommodations as needed to implement effective affirmative action in the college.
- Actively promote equal employment opportunity and incorporate diversity and inclusion principles in annual business plans, strategic plan, and college's mission.
- Notify all contractors and sub-contractors with the department of their affirmative action responsibilities.
- Enforce equal employment opportunity in affirmative and non-affirmative hiring decisions reviewed in the hiring process.
- Require that all college directors, managers, and supervisors include responsibility statements for the supporting affirmative action, equal opportunity, diversity, and/or cultural responsiveness in their position descriptions and annual objectives.
- Comply with the state-wide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

Accountability

The President is accountable directly to the Chancellor of the Minnesota State College and University System and indirectly to the Commissioner of MMB and to the Governor for affirmative action matters.

Name of individual(s) responsible

Name: Jeffery S. Boyd

Title: President

B. Affirmative Action Officer

Responsibilities

The Affirmative Action Officer (AAO) is directly responsible for developing, coordinating, implementing, and monitoring the college's affirmative action program. Quarterly, the AAO reports the college's progress in meeting its affirmative action goals and objectives to the Commissioner of MMB. The MMB Commissioner is responsible for reporting all agencies progress to the Governor and the Legislature.

Duties

The duties of the Affirmative Action Officer include, but are not limited to:

- Develop and administer the college's Affirmative Action Plan.
- Develop and set college-wide affirmative action hiring goals.
- Monitor college compliance and fulfill all affirmative action reporting requirements.
- Disseminate the affirmative action policy to employees in the college.
- Inform the Commissioner on progress on affirmative action and equal opportunity goals and report potential concerns.
- Act as the affirmative action liaison between the college, System Office, MMB, and the Governor's Office.
- Determine the need for affirmative action training within the college and coordinate the development the training programs with the assistance of internal and external resources, as necessary.
- Review and recommend changes in policies, procedures, programs, and physical accommodations to implement affirmative action and equal opportunity.
- Develop innovative programs to attract and retain individuals from protected groups and Veterans in the college.
- Support and participate in the recruitment individuals of protected groups and Veterans for employment, promotion, and training opportunities.
- Manage the college's pre-hire review process.
- Review requests for non-affirmative non-justified hires in the Monitoring the Hiring process and refer unresolved issues to the Commissioner for final decision.

- Ensure supervisors and managers are making affirmative efforts to recruit and retain candidates and employees from protected groups and Veterans.
- Oversee the administration of the Americans with Disabilities Act Title I and Title II.
- Receive requests for ADA accommodations and work with appropriate supervisors, unions, etc. to approve or deny the request, or provide alternative accommodations.
- Maintain records of requests for reasonable accommodations.
- Oversee the administration of the college Diversity Recruitment program.
- Comply with the state-wide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

The Affirmative Action Officer is accountable to the President for program impacts and for ongoing program activities and direction. The Affirmative Action Officer oversees the administrator of ADA Title II, administrator of Diversity and Inclusion, and other equal opportunity related administrators. In addition, AAO ensures that aggregated data and trends of complaints of illegal discrimination in hiring are provided and shared with the Human Resources Director on a quarterly basis.

Name of individual(s) responsible

Name:	Jennifer Haug	Email:	Jennifer.haug@rctc.edu
Title:	HR Specialist/Business Partner	Phone:	(507) 285-7125

C. Affirmative Action Officer Designee(s)

Responsibilities

Designees are responsible for the implementation of the department's Affirmative Action Plan at their facility/work location. Each designee is directly accountable to the college's Affirmative Action Officer for matters relating to affirmative action.

Duties

The duties of Affirmative Action Designees include, but are not limited to:

- Fulfill all affirmative action reporting requirements by submitting standard reports.
- Ensure dissemination of all relevant affirmative action information to appropriate staff.

- Serve as ex-officio member of the Employee Resource Group (ERG) diversity committee at their work and/or participate in the college's diversity or equity committee.
- Determine the need for diversity training and recommend training at their respective work location.
- Review policies, procedures, and practices to recommend changes to the Affirmative Action Officer.
- Partner with the college's recruitment team at their work locations.
- Comply with the statewide and college's anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

The Affirmative Action Designee is accountable indirectly to the Human Resource Director on matters pertaining to Affirmative Action and Equal Opportunity.

Name of individual(s) responsible

Name: Jennifer Haug	Email: <u>Jennifer.haug@rctc.edu</u>
Title: <u>HR Specialist/Business Partner</u>	Phone: <u>(507) 285-7125</u>

D. Human Resources Director or Designee(s)

Responsibilities

The Human Resources Director or Designee is responsible for ensuring equitable and uniform administration of all personnel policies, in conjunction with the college ADA Coordinator, to ensure timely responses to all Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requests for reasonable accommodations to remove barriers to equal employment opportunity with the college. HR Director or Designee is responsible for assisting managers and supervisors in human resources management activities.

Staff within Human Resources who work on affirmative action and diversity issues are accountable to the HR Director or Designee.

Duties

The duties of HR Directors include, but are limited to:

- Maintain effective working relationships with college affirmative action officers and designees.
- Provide leadership to HR staff and others to ensure personnel decision-making processes adhere to equal opportunity and affirmative action principles.

- Provide guidance in the development and use of selection criteria to ensure they are objective, uniform, and job related.
- Assist in recruitment and retention of protected groups and Veterans and notify managers and supervisors of existing disparities.
- Ensure an Affirmative Action Pre-hire Review process is implemented and followed by hiring managers and supervisors by in collaboration with the Affirmative Action Officer.
- Initiate and report on progress made with program objectives contained in the Affirmative Action Plan.
- Ensure that the reasonable accommodation process is implemented and followed for all employees and applicants in need of reasonable accommodation.
- Assist supervisors, managers, and the Affirmative Action Officer in recruitment of protected group members and Veterans through career and job fairs and other efforts, as well as in selection and retention of protected group members and Veterans.
- Assist supervisors, managers, affirmative action officers, and human resources staff in the creation of supported worker positions. These positions help reduce college costs by diverting supportive employment duties from higher skilled workers to supported worker positions. This can improve employee morale and retention of individuals with disabilities in integrated employment.
- Request assistance from MMB to support diversity recruitment efforts, as well as the retention of protected group members and Veterans in hard-to-fill or executive level positions.
- Include responsibility statements for affirmative action/equal employment opportunity in position descriptions and annual performance objectives.
- Comply with the state-wide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

HR staff are accountable to the HR Directors or Designees.

Name of individual(s) responsible

Name: Jennifer Haug

Title: <u>HR Specialist/Business Partner</u>

Email:	Jennifer.haug@rctc.edu
Phone:	<u>(507) 285-7125</u>

E. Americans with Disabilities Act Title I Coordinator

Responsibilities

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Title I Coordinator is responsible for ensuring the college's compliance with the ADA Title I – Employment, in accordance with the ADA - as amended, and the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

Duties:

The duties of the ADA Title I Coordinator include, but are not limited to:

- Provide guidance, coordination, and direction to college management on the ADA. The college develops and implements policies, procedures, and practices to ensure college employment practices and programs are accessible and nondiscriminatory.
- Provide training, technical guidance, and consultation to college management and staff on compliance and best practices for hiring and retaining individuals with disabilities, as well as the provision of reasonable accommodations to employees and job applicants.
- Track and facilitate requests for reasonable accommodations for job applicants and employees, as well as members of the public accessing college services, and report reasonable accommodations annually to MMB.
- Research case law rules and regulation and update HR Directors on evolving ADA issues. Meet bi-annually with ADA Coordinators and provide updates on ADA.
- Ensure compliance with ADA reporting according to state and federal requirements.
- Assist the Affirmative Action Officer in designing and delivering specific ADA training for targeted groups.
- Submit reasonable accommodation reimbursement under the guidelines of the state-wide accommodation fund.
- Provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals (as defined by ADA) with known physical or mental disabilities, to enable them to compete in the selection process, perform essential functions of the job, and/or enjoy equal benefits and privileges. The ADA Coordinator, in consultation with the employee and supervisor, and other individuals involved must:
 - Discuss the purpose and essential functions of the job and complete a step-by-step job analysis;
 - o Determine the precise job-related limitations;
 - Identify potential accommodations and assess the effectiveness each would have in allowing the employee to perform essential functions of the job; and

- After discussion and review, select and implement the accommodations that are appropriate for both the employee and the employer using the Reasonable Accommodation Agreement.
- Comply with the state-wide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

The ADA Title I Coordinator is accountable to the President.

Name of individual(s) responsible

Name: Jennifer Haug

Title: <u>HR Specialist/Business Partner</u>

Email: <u>Jennifer.haug@rctc.edu</u> Phone: <u>(507) 285-7125</u>

F. Americans with Disabilities Act Title II Coordinator

Responsibilities

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Title II Coordinator is responsible ensuring the college's compliance with the ADA Title II – Public Services, in accordance with the ADA as amended, and the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

Duties:

The duties of the ADA Title II Coordinator include, but are not limited to:

- Provide guidance, coordination, and direction to college management on the ADA. The college develops and implements policies, procedures, and practices to ensure college employment practices and programs are accessible and nondiscriminatory.
- Provide training, technical guidance, and consultation to the college's management and staff on compliance and best practices with regards and obligations to members of the public with disabilities, as well as the provision of reasonable modifications for visitors.
- Track and facilitate requests for reasonable modifications for members of the public accessing college services. Report reasonable modifications annually to MMB.
- Research case law rules and regulation and update Executive team on evolving ADA issues. Meet bi-annually with state ADA Coordinators and learn updates and share practices on ADA.
- Ensure compliance with ADA reporting according to state and federal requirements.
- Assist the Affirmative Action Officer in designing and delivering training for college employees assisting ADA modifications for the public.

- Provide reasonable modifications to members of the public (as defined by ADA) with known physical or mental disabilities, to ensure equal access and privileges to programming and services. The ADA Title II Coordinator will consult with the member of the public in need of a modification and:
 - o Discuss the purpose and essential functions of the reasonable modification.
 - Identify the potential modifications and assess the effectiveness each request.
 - After discussion and review, select and implement the modifications that are appropriate for both the member of the public and the college.
 - o Document this review and reported in the State ADA Annual Report.
- Comply with the state-wide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

The ADA Title II Coordinator is accountable to the President.

Name of individual(s) responsible

Name: <u>Travis Kromminga</u> Title: Director of Disability Support Services Email: <u>travis.kromminga@rctc.edu</u> Phone: (507) 280-2968

H. Senior Managers and Facility Executive Team Leaders

Responsibilities

College senior managers and executive team leaders are responsible for implementing all aspects of the college Affirmative Action Plan and the college's commitment to affirmative action and equal opportunity.

Duties

The duties of senior managers and facility executive team leaders include, but are limited to:

- Identify problem areas and eliminate barriers that prevent equal employment opportunity within the college.
- Communicate the equal opportunity employment policy and the affirmative action program and plan to all employees.

- Assist the Affirmative Action Officer in periodic audits of hiring and promotion patterns to remove obstacles to attaining affirmative action goals and objectives.
- Hold regular discussions with supervisors and employees to ensure the college's equal employment opportunity policies are being followed.
- Inform and evaluate managers and supervisors on their equal employment opportunity efforts and results, in addition to other job performance criteria.
- Comply with the statewide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

Senior managers and executive team leaders are accountable directly to the President.

Individual(s) responsible

Michelle Pyfferoen, Vice President of Academic Affairs, <u>michelle.pyfferoen@rctc.edu</u>, 507-285-7256 Teresa Brown, Interim Vice President of Student Services, <u>Teresa.brown@rctc.edu</u>, 507-285-7217 Steve Schmall, Vice President of Finance and Facilities, <u>steve.schmall@rctc.edu</u>, 507-285-7214 Vacant, Chief Human Resources Officer, 507-285-7183 Mirwais Qader, Chief Information Officer, <u>mir.qader@rctc.edu</u>, 507-281-7787 Nate Stoltman, Executive Director of Communications, Marketing and External Relations, <u>nate.stoltman@rctc.edu</u>, 507-536-5604

I. All Employees

Responsibilities

All employees are responsible for conducting themselves in accordance with Minnesota State Colleges and Universities policy of equal employment opportunity. This includes refraining from any actions that would subject any employee to negative treatment on the basis of race, creed, color, sex (including pregnancy), national origin, age, marital status, familial status, disability, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, reliance on public assistance, membership or activity in a local human rights commission, religion, political opinions, or affiliations. Employees who believe they have been subjected to such discrimination or harassment are encouraged to use the college's complaint procedure.

Duties:

The duties of all employees include, but are not limited to:

• Exhibit an attitude of respect, courtesy, and cooperation toward colleagues and the public.

- Refrain from any actions that would adversely affect a colleague on the basis of their race, creed, color, sex (including pregnancy), national origin, age, marital status, familial status, disability, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, reliance on public assistance, membership or activity in a local human rights commission, religion, political opinions, or affiliations.
- Comply with the state-wide and college anti-discrimination and anti-harassment policies.

Employees are accountable to their designated supervisor and indirectly to the college's President. Employees are responsible for maintaining an environment free from harassment and discrimination. All employees are responsible for conducting themselves in accordance with the Affirmative Action Plan.

Communication of the Affirmative Action Plan

Minnesota Administrative Rules, part 3905.0400, subpart 1, item D and Minnesota Administrative Rules, part 3905.0400, subpart 1, item E

The following information describes the methods that the college takes to communicate the Affirmative Action Plan to employees and the general public:

Internal Methods of Communication

- A memorandum detailing the location of the Affirmative Action Plan and the responsibility to read, understand, support, and implement equal opportunity and affirmative action will be sent from the college's leadership or alternatively, the Affirmative Action Officer, to all staff on an annual basis.
- The college's Affirmative Action Plan is available to all employees on the college's website at <u>https://www.rctc.edu/hr/affirmative-action/</u> or <u>RCTC AA Plan</u> and in print to anyone who requests it. As requested, the college will make the plan available in alternative formats.
- A physical copy of the college's Affirmative Action Plan is available to employees at the following address:

Rochester Community and Technical College Human Resources Office (EA201) 851 30th Avenue SE Rochester, MN 55904 • Nondiscrimination and equal opportunity statements and posters are prominently displayed in areas frequently used by employees.

External Methods of Communication

- The college's Affirmative Action Plan is available on the college's public website at https://www.rctc.edu/hr/affirmative-action/ or RCTC AA Plan. Printed copies are available to anyone who requests it. As requested, the college will make the plan available in alternative formats.
- The college's website homepage, letterhead, publications, and all job postings, will include the statement "an equal opportunity employer." Job postings and recruitment materials will include "women, minorities, individuals with disabilities and veterans are encouraged to apply." The college will also ensure a representative ratio of diversity is on all marketing materials.
- Nondiscrimination and equal opportunity statements and posters are prominently displayed in common public areas. Examples of posters displayed include: Equal Employment Opportunity is the law, Employee Rights under the Fair Labor Standards Act, and the Americans with Disabilities Act Notice to the Public.
- A physical copy of Rochester Community and Technical College's Affirmative Action Plan is available to contractors, vendors, and members of the public at the following address:

Rochester Community and Technical College Human Resources Office (EA201) 851 30th Avenue SE Rochester, MN 55904

Job Category Analysis

Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 3.A and Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 3.B

The college conducted a Job Category Analysis to determine the percent of protected group employees and Veterans in each job category. The job category analysis lists job class titles in each Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) job category at the college. A job classification is a group of one or more positions with similar duties and responsibilities. These classifications help clarify positions within the class so the same schedules of pay can be applied with equity to all positions in the class that fall under the same, or substantially the same, employment conditions.

It should be noted that in previous Affirmative Action Plans, faculty were not separated out into their own category and instead were combined with professionals. It has been determined given faculty duties and responsibilities they should, in fact, be separated out from that of other professionals. Given the division of faculty, there is a significant decrease in numbers in the professionals category when reviewing the previous plan.

Determining Availability

MS 43A.19(b), MS 43A.19(c), Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 1, Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 2, Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 3C, and Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 3D

For purposes of this Affirmative Action Plan, "availability" means an estimated percentage of qualified females, racial/ethnic minorities, or individuals with disabilities in the relevant labor market who are available for positions in each job category at a state college/university.

The college used the United States Census Bureau's 2014-2018 American Community Survey, which is the most current statistical information available at the time of developing this Affirmative Action Plan.

The college used the American Community Survey statistical data for external availability and feeder job statistics of employees for internal availability. For affirmative action purposes, "feeder job" means staffed positions within the college that can be promoted and/or transferred into/within EEO job categories (refer to Appendix D. Feeder Jobs for details).

These external and internal factors are weighted according to the college's past hiring patterns and/or future recruitment focus to obtain the final availability (Refer to Appendix D. Feeder Jobs and Appendix E. Determining Availability for details).

Utilization/Availability Analysis, Establishment of Goals, and Timetables

Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0400 Subp 1 Item G, Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 3, Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 4, Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 5, and Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0600 Subp 6.

Utilization is an analysis of affirmative action and equal opportunity employment data used to assess the available workforce for a given state. As explained in the previous section, "availability" means an estimated percentage of qualified females, racial/ethnic minorities, or individuals with disabilities in the relevant labor market who are available for positions in each job category at a state college/university.

Through the utilization and availability analysis, the college has determined which job categories are underutilized for females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities in the college and has set hiring goals for the next two years. Hiring goals are objective and used for making good faith efforts for all aspects of the affirmative action program. Effective hiring goals are strategic, actionable, and measurable efforts the college is committed to pursuing and implementing in 2020-2022.

The goals are not quotas, nor do they require protected group or Veteran status-based hiring preferences. They are aspirational goals so that the college makes good faith efforts to remove barriers to equal employment opportunity.

The college used the whole person rule to establish a hiring goal. This means when the actual representation percentage of females, racial/ethnic minorities, or individuals with disabilities is less than reasonably would be expected given the workforce participation in the labor market area, and that difference is at least one whole person (more than 1), then a goal is established for that job category.

When a hiring goal for a job category is established, a percentage goal equal to the final availability percentage is calculated for females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities in that job category.

In **Table 2. Hiring Goals by Job Category and Protected Group and Veterans**, if a protected group or Veteran in a job category shows "Monitor," the college will proactively make good faith efforts to recruit external qualified protected groups or Veterans. The college will also train and retain employees in the job category to help prevent underutilization due to an employee move or attrition.

Refer to Appendix F. Utilization-Goals for details for underutilization and hiring goals.

Table 2. Hiring Goals by Job Category and Protected Group and Veteran is a summary of hiring goalsby job category and protected group or Veteran. The actions the college will take to address thesehiring goals will be described in Corrective Actions and Action-Oriented Programs section.

Table 2. Hiring Goals by Job Category and Protected Group and Veterans

Job Categories	Females Establish Goals?	Females If Yes, Goals for FY 2020- 2022	Racial/ Ethnic Minorities Establish Goals?	Racial/ Ethnic Minori ties If Yes, Goals for FY 2020- 2022	IWD Establish Goals?	IWD If Yes, Goals for FY 2020- 2022	Veterans Establish Goals?	Veterans If Yes, Goals for FY 2020- 2022
Officials/Administrators	Monitor		Monitor				Monitor	
Professionals					Monitor		Monitor	
Technicians	Monitor	1.	Monitor		Monitor		Monitor	
Protective Services: Non-sworn	Yes	34.98%	Monitor		Monitor			
Para-Professionals			Yes	8.83%			Monitor	
Office/Clerical			Yes	8.96%	Monitor		Monitor	
Skilled Craft	Monitor	,	Monitor		Monitor		Monitor	
Service Maintenance	Yes	33.76%			Monitor		Monitor	
Faculty: Temporary			Yes	9.13%	Yes	3.73%	Yes	4.62%
Faculty: Customized Training			Monitor		Monitor		Monitor	
Faculty: Probationary			Yes	24.76 %	Monitor		Monitor	
Faculty: Unlimited	Yes	76.57%					Monitor	

Progress and Personnel Activity Reports

MS 43A.19 Subd. 1(a)(3) for separations, and Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0400 Subp. 1 Item I

The progress report examines hiring goals established in the prior Affirmative Action Plan. As a part of the college's monitoring practices, the college evaluated if it met the hiring goal(s) established in the prior Affirmative Action Plan (refer to **Appendix A. Progress Report**).

Separation results were evaluated to identify potential action area(s) to establish retention strategies for the 2020-2022 plan year (refer to **Appendix B. Separation Analysis**).

Identification of Areas for Further Monitoring

Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0400 Subp. 1 Item H and I

Monitoring personnel activity helps agencies monitor progress in meeting hiring goals. Data from the previous plan period can help indicate when changes to program efforts are appropriate.

Workforce Snapshot

In **Appendix F. the Utilization Goals worksheet** indicates if a job category by protected groups and Veterans is underutilized.

Area(s) in the college's workforce that require further monitoring appear in the "Establish Goals?" column as:

- "Yes": there is underutilization.
- "Monitor": the college needs to monitor the job it may be underutilized where employee movement occurs.

<u>Collective Action and Action Oriented Programs</u> will be followed to address the identified placement goal(s).

Personnel Activities

Progress Reports

Appendix A. Progress Report includes only job categories that have hiring goal(s) established in the prior Affirmative Action Plan and it evaluates if the college attained the hiring goal(s).

Where the indication of the "Goal Met?" column is:

- "Yes": the college met the goal established in the prior Affirmative Action Plan.
- "No": the college did not attain the goal established in the prior Affirmative Action Plan.
- "No Hire/Prom": there were no opportunities in the prior Affirmative Action Plan period.

<u>Corrective Actions and Action-Oriented Programs</u> will be followed to address the identified area(s) to monitor/focus.

Separations

Appendix B. Separation Analysis shows the results by separation type and the protected group and Veterans during the prior Affirmative Action Plan period. The separation percentages were derived within the separation type by protected group or Veteran to identify impact on protected group members or Veterans. There are two examinations in this worksheet:

- 1. The total percentage indicates the percentage by separation type. For example, there were 15 separations in total. Of those separations, 10 employees separated due to dismissal or non-certification. The dismissal or non-certification percentage is 66.67% (10 divided by 15).
- 2. The "percentage type¹" in **Appendix B. Separation Analysis** indicates percentages by protected group or Veteran within a separation type. For example, there were 10 separations by dismissal or non-certification in total. Of those separations, eight were female employees. The female dismissal or non-certification separation is 80.00% (8 divided by 10).

<u>Corrective Actions and Action-Oriented Programs</u> will be followed to address the identified area(s) to monitor/focus.

Corrective Actions and Action-Oriented Programs

Minnesota Administrative Rules 3905.0400 Subp 1 Item H

The college's Affirmative Action Program is designed to implement the provisions of this Affirmative Action Plan and meet requirements found in Minnesota Statutes, section 43A.191 Subdivision 2. These Action-Oriented Programs are carried out throughout this Affirmative Action Plan period.

Corrective Actions

This section identifies ways the college will eliminate barriers, provide corrective actions, and make good faith efforts toward the affirmative action goals for underutilized protected groups or Veterans (broken down by specific job categories).

The college developed the below action-oriented programs specific to the job category/protected group(s) or Veteran(s) identified in the "Identification of Areas for Further Monitoring" section supported by the "Utilization /Availability Analysis, Establishment of Statement of Goals, and Timetable" and "Progress Reports and Personnel Analyses sections."

Table 3. Areas of Further Monitoring and Corrective Actions

For all categories, barriers to employment can cause underutilization. RCTC will continually review their recruitment, selection, and promotion processes as well as the on-the-job experience of employees to ensure that women, minorities and individuals with disabilities receive equal opportunities to secure employment and promotion.

In each area that we have a need for a corrective action, the College has already started the work on the corrective actions and will continuously monitor all other areas. We have developed a checklist for additional recruitment to include Veterans resources and other external agencies. Every advertised position is sent to all of the additional resources.

Areas for Further Monitoring	Corrective Actions		
Officials/Managers The college needs to "monitor" women, racial/ethnic minorities, and Veterans because underutilization may occur by some employee movement. 	 Even though there is no underutilization of women, racial/ethnic minorities or Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event these categories do become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications). Use additional recruitment efforts 		
 Professionals The college needs to "monitor" Individuals with Disabilities (IWD) and Veterans. 	• Even though there is no underutilization of IWD or Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event this category does become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).		

Areas for Further Monitoring	Corrective Actions
 Technicians The college needs to "monitor" women, racial/ethnic minorities, IWD and Veterans. 	• Even though there is no underutilization of women, racial/ethnic minorities, IWD or Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event these categories do become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).
 Protective Service: non-sworn Females are underutilized; low number of qualified female applicants. The college needs to "monitor" racial/ethnic minorities and IWD. Few employees in this category. 	 Work with local workforce agencies, security outlets, and other agencies to increase recruitment efforts. Even though there is no underutilization of racial/ethnic minorities or IWD in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event these categories do become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).
 Para-Professionals Racial/Ethnic Minorities are underutilized; low number of qualified applicants. The College needs to "monitor" Veterans. 	 Work with local workforce agencies, diversity focused publications, and other agencies to increase recruitment efforts. Review position description language to identify any words/descriptions that may screen out racial/ethnic minorities. Even though there is no underutilization of Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event this Veterans do become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).
 Office/Clerical Racial/Ethnic Minorities are underutilized; low number of qualified applicants. The college needs to "monitor" IWD and Veterans. 	 Work with local workforce agencies, diversity focused publications, and other agencies to increase recruitment efforts. Review position description language to identify any words/descriptions that may screen out racial/ethnic minorities. Even though there is no underutilization of IWD or Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event this category does become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).
 Skilled Craft The college needs to "monitor" women, racial/ethnic minorities, IWD and Veterans. 	• Even though there is no underutilization of women, racial/ethnic minorities IWD or Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event these categories do become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).
 Service Maintenance Females are underutilized. The college needs to "Monitor" IWD and Veterans. 	 Work with local workforce agencies, MMB, and other agencies to increase recruitment efforts. Even though there is no underutilization of IWD and Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event this category does become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).
 Faculty: Temporary Racial/Ethnic minorities, IWD and Veterans are underutilized. Low number of applicants, last minute/emergency hiring, temporary work. 	 Increase advertising efforts instead of counting on word of mouth. Work with local industry, especially for technical fields.

Areas for Further Monitoring	Corrective Actions				
 Faculty: Customized Training The college needs to "monitor" racial/ethnic minorities, IWD and Veterans. 	• Even though there is no underutilization of racial/ethnic minorities, IWD or Veterans in this job category, it is an area that potentially will be underutilized if protected group members or Veterans separate. In the event these categories do become underutilized, we will use additional recruitment resources (e.g. specialized publications).				
 Faculty: Probationary and Unlimited combined All (unlimited) faculty enter into probationary status before becoming unlimited; therefore, it will be important to closely monitor the probationary faculty as that feeds into unlimited (females are underutilized) Separations of females in this category was a bit higher due to retirements. Limited hiring will affect this category 	 Closely monitor all probationary faculty hires as they ultimately become unlimited. Increase advertising efforts 				

Other Action-Oriented Programs

This section provides an overview of the college's general efforts and actions to ensure equal opportunity. Agencies have reviewed barriers to hiring during the previous plan period and identified recruitment strategies, processes, and training to address underutilization for this plan year.

Barriers

The college has constraints to address underutilization and areas for monitoring identified in the previous section.

- Limited anticipated number of open positions in this plan year.
- Limited outreach due to unanticipated budget deficiencies. This will limit our outreach and effectiveness of recruitment efforts.
- Unwillingness of employees to self-identify, including individuals with disabilities. This will affect the representation of employees in this protected group or Veterans.

Recruitment and Processes

The college takes the following actions to improve recruitment and increase the number of qualified females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities in the applicant pool:

- The college will continue to place advertisements of job opportunities through <u>the State of MN</u> <u>Career site</u> (https://mn.gov/mmb/careers/search-for-jobs/).
- Continue to consider female, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disability applicants for all positions for which they qualify.

- Use LinkedIn job posting feature to search for applicants.
- Advertise the Connect 700 program to attract qualified individuals with disabilities by providing a link to MMB's web site.
- Continue to use the EEO tag line on all job postings and advertisements.
- Continue to publish recruitment media depicting individuals that represent protected groups or Veterans.
- Review/evaluate job postings to eliminate non-inclusive language.
- Develop a pipeline for entry-level jobs across job categories by using Workforce Development Inc, WorkForce Community, and other resources.

Persons Responsible:

• All employees with hiring authority (Cabinet level positions, Deans, Supervisors, Human Resources)

Retention

The college will take the following actions to improve retention of females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities:

- Encourage all new hires to receive applicable trainings for their career development.
- Ensure an inclusive work environment and equal opportunities for all employees.
- Create an electronic on-boarding tool.
- Develop and communicate to employees' leadership ladder/succession planning.

Persons Responsible:

• All employees with supervisory authority (Cabinet level positions, Deans, Supervisors, Human Resources)

Training

The college will take the following actions to improve retention of females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities:

- Implement cross-learning programs to develop employee's skill and competencies.
- Provide quality on-boarding orientations.
- Announce training opportunities to all employees; development of a calendar.
- Broadly announce all promotion and transfer opportunities.
- Provide unconscious bias training to all employees.
- Ensure all new hires receive inclusive workplace e-learning training.

Persons Responsible:

• All employees with professional development signatory authority (Cabinet level positions, Deans, Supervisors, Human Resources)

Methods of Auditing, Evaluating, and Reporting Program Success

Pre-Employment Review Procedure/Monitoring the Hiring Process

Rochester Community and Technical College will evaluate its selection process to determine if its requirements unnecessarily screen out a disproportionate number of females, racial/ethnic minorities, or individuals with disabilities. The college will use the Monitoring the Hiring Process form for every hire to track the number of females, racial/ethnic minorities, and individuals with disabilities in each stage of the selection process. Directors, managers, and supervisors will work closely with human resources and the Affirmative Action Officer in reviewing the requirements for the position, posting the position, and interviewing and selection to ensure that equal opportunity and affirmative action are carried out. Directors, managers, and supervisors must document their hiring decisions and equal opportunity professionals will review for bias.

A college that does not meet its hiring goals for competitive appointments, and noncompetitive appointments under MS 43A.08, subd. 1(9), (11) and (16), and 43A.15, subd. 3, 10, 12, and 13, must justify its non-affirmative action hires. The affirmative action statute was amended in 2019 so colleges can no longer take missed opportunities. The college will report the number of affirmative and non-affirmative hires to MMB on a quarterly basis.

When candidates are invited to participate in the selection process, employees scheduling the selection process will describe the process to the candidate (*e.g.*, interview process, testing process). All candidates are provided information regarding the procedure to request reasonable accommodations, if necessary, to allow candidates with disabilities equal opportunity to participate in the selection process. For example, describe if interview questions are offered ahead of time or what technology may be used during a test. This allows for an individual with a disability to determine if they need a reasonable accommodation in advance.

All employees involved in the selection process are trained and accountable for the college's commitment to equal opportunity and the affirmative action program and its implementation.

Pre-Review Procedure for Layoff Decisions

The Affirmative Action Officer, in conjunction with the college's human resources office, is responsible for reviewing all pending layoffs to determine their effect on the college's affirmative action goals and timetables.

If it is determined that there is a disparate impact on protected groups and Veterans, the college will document the reasons why the layoff is occurring, such as positions targeted for layoff, applicable personnel policies or collective bargaining agreement provisions, or other relevant reasons. The college

will determine if other alternatives are available to minimize the disparate impact on protected groups or Veterans.

Other Methods of Program Evaluation

The college submits the following compliance reports to MMB as part of the efforts to evaluate the college's affirmative action program:

- Quarterly Monitoring the Hiring Process Reports
- Biannual Affirmative Action Plan
- Annual Americans with Disabilities Act Report
- Annual Internal Complaint Report
- Disposition of Internal Complaint (submitted to MMB within 30 days of final disposition)

The college also evaluates the Affirmative Action Plan in the following ways:

- Monitors progress toward stated goals by job category
- Analyzes employment activity (hires, promotions, and terminations) by position/job category to determine if there is disparate impact
- Analyzes compensation program to determine if there are patterns of discrimination
- Reviews the accessibility of online systems and websites, and ensures that reasonable accommodations can be easily requested
- Discusses progress with college leadership on a periodic basis and makes recommendations for improvement

A. Minnesota State's Equal Opportunity and Non-discrimination in Employment and Education Policy, Board Policy 1B.1

Part 1. Policy Statement.

Subpart A. Equal opportunity for students and employees. Minnesota State Colleges and Universities has an enduring commitment to enhancing Minnesota's quality of life by developing and fostering understanding and appreciation of a free and diverse society and providing equal opportunity for all its students and employees. To help effectuate these goals, Minnesota State Colleges and Universities is committed to a policy of equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in employment and education.

Subpart B. Nondiscrimination. No person shall be discriminated against in the terms and conditions of employment, personnel practices, or access to and participation in, programs, services, and activities with regard to race, sex, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, disability, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression. In addition, discrimination in employment based on familial status or membership or activity in a local commission as defined by law is prohibited.

Harassment on the basis of race, sex, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, disability, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or familial status is prohibited. Harassment may occur in a variety of relationships, including faculty and student, supervisor and employee, student and student, staff and student, employee and employee, and other relationships with persons having business at, or visiting the educational or working environment.

This policy is directed at verbal or physical conduct that constitutes discrimination /harassment under state and federal law and is not directed at the content of speech. In cases in which verbal statements and other forms of expression are involved, Minnesota State Colleges and Universities will give due consideration to an individual's constitutionally protected right to free speech and academic freedom. However, discrimination and harassment are not within the protections of academic freedom or free speech.

The system office, colleges, and universities shall maintain and encourage full freedom, within the law, of expression, inquiry, teaching and research. Academic freedom comes with a responsibility that all members of our education community benefit from it without intimidation, exploitation or coercion.

This policy shall apply to all individuals affiliated with Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, including but not limited to, its students, employees, applicants, volunteers, agents, and Board of Trustees, and is intended to protect the rights and privacy of both the complainant and respondent and other involved individuals, as well as to prevent retaliation or reprisal. Individuals who violate this policy shall be subject to disciplinary or other corrective action.

This policy supersedes all existing system, college, and university equal opportunity and nondiscrimination policies.

Part 2. Definitions.

Subpart A. Consensual Relationship. Consensual relationship means a sexual or romantic relationship between two persons who voluntarily enter into such a relationship. Employees who are members of the same household should also refer to the Board Policy 4.10, of Trustees Nepotism policy 4.10.

Subpart B. Discrimination. Discrimination means conduct that is directed at an individual because of his or her protected class and that subjects the individual to different treatment by agents or employees so as to interfere with or limit the ability of the individual to participate in, or benefit from, the services, activities, or privileges provided by the system or colleges and universities or otherwise adversely affects the individual's employment or education.

Subpart C. Discriminatory harassment. Discriminatory harassment means verbal or physical conduct that is directed at an individual because of his or her protected class, and that is sufficiently severe, pervasive, or persistent so as to have the purpose or effect of creating a hostile work or educational environment.

As required by law, Minnesota State Colleges and Universities further defines sexual harassment as a form of sexual discrimination which is prohibited by state and federal law. Sexual harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, sexually motivated physical conduct, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- 1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment or education, evaluation of a student's academic performance, or term or condition of participation in student activities or in other events or activities sanctioned by the college or university; or
- 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or academic decisions or other decisions about participation in student activities or other events or activities sanctioned by the college or university; or
- 3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of threatening an individual's employment; interfering with an individual's work or academic performance; or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment.

Subpart D. Employee. Employee means any individual employed by Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, including all faculty, staff, administrators, teaching assistants, graduate assistants, residence directors and student employees.

Subpart E. Protected class. For purposes of this policy:

1. Protected class includes race, sex, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, disability, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender

expression. In addition, familial status and membership or activity in a local human rights commission are protected classes in employment.

2. This policy prohibits use of protected class status as a factor in decisions affecting education and employment where prohibited by federal of state law.

Subpart F. Retaliation. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, intentionally engaging in any form of intimidation, reprisal or harassment against an individual because he or she:

- a. made a complaint under this policy;
- b. assisted or participated in any manner in an investigation, or process under this policy, regardless of whether a claim of discrimination or harassment is substantiated;
- c. associated with a person or group of persons who are disabled or are of a different race, color, creed, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or national origin; or
- d. Made a complaint or assisted or participated in any manner in an investigation or process with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights, the Minnesota Department of Human Rights or other enforcement agencies, under any federal or stated nondiscrimination law, including the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Minnesota Human Rights Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 363A, and their amendments.

Retaliation may occur whether or not there is a power or authority differential between the individuals involved.

Subpart G. Sexual harassment and violence as sexual abuse. Under certain circumstances, sexual harassment or violence may constitute sexual abuse according to Minnesota law. In such situations, the system office and colleges and universities shall comply with the reporting requirements in Minnesota Statutes Section 626.556 (reporting of maltreatment of minors) and Minnesota Statutes Section 626.557 (Vulnerable Adult Protection Act). Nothing in this policy will prohibit any college or university or the system office from taking immediate action to protect victims of alleged sexual abuse. Board Policy 1B.3 Sexual Violence addresses sexual violence.

Subpart H. Student. For purposes of this policy, the term "student" includes all persons who:

- 1. Are enrolled in one or more courses, either credit or non-credit, through a college or university;
- 2. Withdraw, transfer or graduate, after an alleged violation of the student conduct code;
- 3. Are not officially enrolled for a particular term but who have a continuing relationship with the college or university;
- 4. Have been notified of their acceptance for admission or have initiated the process of application for admission or financial aid; or
- 5. Are living in a college or university residence hall although not enrolled in, or employed by, the institution.

Part 3. Consensual Relationships. An employee of Minnesota State Colleges and Universities shall not enter into a consensual relationship with a student or an employee over whom he or she exercises direct or otherwise significant academic, administrative, supervisory, evaluative, counseling, or extracurricular authority or influence. In the event a relationship already exists, each college and university and system office shall develop a procedure to reassign evaluative authority as may be possible to avoid violations of this policy. This prohibition does not limit the right of an employee to make a recommendation on personnel matters concerning a family or household member where the right to make recommendations on such personnel matters is explicitly provided for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement or compensation plan.

Part 4. Retaliation. Retaliation as defined in this policy is prohibited in the system office, colleges and universities. Any individual subject to this policy who intentionally engages in retaliation shall be subject to disciplinary or other corrective action as appropriate.

Part 5. Policies and procedures. The chancellor shall establish procedures to implement this policy. The equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in employment and education policy and procedures of colleges and universities shall comply with Board Policy 1B.1 and Procedure 1B.1.1.

B. Minnesota State's Report/Complaint of Discrimination/Harassment Investigation and Resolution, System Procedure 1B.1.1

Part 1. Purpose and applicability.

Subpart A. Purpose. This procedure is designed to further implement Minnesota State Colleges and Universities policies relating to nondiscrimination by providing a process through which individuals alleging violation of Board Policy 1B.1 Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination in Employment and Education may pursue a complaint. This includes allegations of retaliation, or discrimination or harassment based on sex, race, age, disability, color, creed, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, or status with regard to public assistance. In addition, discrimination in employment based on membership or activity in a local commission as defined by law is prohibited.

Subpart B. Applicability. This procedure shall apply to all individuals affiliated with Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, including its students, employees, and applicants for employment, and is intended to protect the rights and privacy of both the complainant and respondent and other involved individuals, as well as to prevent retaliation/reprisal. Individuals who violate this procedure shall be subject to disciplinary or other corrective action.

A single act of discrimination or harassment may be based on more than one protected class status. For example, discrimination based on anti-Semitism may relate to religion, national origin, or both; discrimination against a pregnant woman might be based on sex, marital status, or both; discrimination against a transgender or transsexual individual might be based on sex or sexual orientation.

Not every act that may be offensive to an individual or group constitutes discrimination or harassment. Harassment includes action beyond the mere expression of views, words, symbols or thoughts that another individual finds offensive. To constitute a violation of Board Policy 1B.1, conduct must be considered sufficiently serious to deny or limit a student's or employee's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by Minnesota State Colleges and Universities.

Subpart C. Scope. This procedure is not applicable to allegations of sexual violence; allegations of sexual violence are handled pursuant to Board Policy 1B.3 Sexual Violence and System Procedure 1B.3.1. In addition, harassment and discrimination complaints not arising from alleged violations of Board Policy 1B.1, are to be addressed under other appropriate policies and established practices.

Part 2. Definitions. The definitions in Board Policy 1B.1 also apply to this procedure.

Subpart A. Designated officer. Designated officer means an individual designated by the president or chancellor to be primarily responsible for conducting an initial inquiry, determining whether to proceed with an investigation under this procedure, and investigating or coordinating the investigation of reports and complaints of discrimination/harassment in accordance with this procedure.

Prior to serving as the designated officer, the individual must complete investigator training provided by the system office.

Subpart B. Decisionmaker. Decisionmaker means a high level administrator designated by the president or chancellor to review investigative reports, to make findings whether Board Policy 1B.1 has been violated based upon the investigation, and to determine the appropriate action for the institution to take based upon the findings.

Prior to serving as a decisionmaker for complaints under this procedure, administrators must complete decisionmaker training provided by the system office.

Subpart C. Retaliation. Retaliation is as defined in Board Policy 1B.1 Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination in Employment and Education policy

Part 3. Consensual relationships. Board Policy 1B.1 Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination in Employment and Education prohibits consensual relationships between an employee and a student or another employee over whom he or she exercises direct or otherwise significant academic, administrative, supervisory, evaluative, counseling, or extracurricular authority or influence, whether or not both parties appear to have consented to the relationship, except as noted.

Examples of prohibited consensual relationships include, but are not limited to:

• An employee and a student if the employee is in a position to evaluate or otherwise significantly influence the student's education, employment, housing, participation in athletics,

or any other college or university activity (employee includes, for example, graduate assistants, administrators, coaches, advisors, program directors, counselors and residence life staff);

- A faculty member and a student who is enrolled in the faculty member's course, who is an advisee of the faculty member, or whose academic work is supervised or evaluated by the faculty member; and
- A supervisor and an employee under the person's supervision.

A faculty member or other employee is prohibited from undertaking a romantic or sexual relationship or permitting one to develop with a student or supervisee who is enrolled in the person's class or is subject to that person's supervision or evaluation.

If a consensual, romantic or sexual relationship exists between an employee and another individual and subsequent events create a supervisor/supervisee, faculty/student or similar relationship between them, the person with evaluative or supervisory authority is required to report the relationship to his or her supervisor so that evaluative functions can be reassigned if possible.

This procedure does not cover consensual relationships between individuals that do not require one to exercise direct or otherwise significant academic, administrative, supervisory, evaluative, counseling, or extracurricular authority or influence over the other.

This prohibition does not limit the right of an employee to make a recommendation on personnel matters concerning a person with whom they have a consensual relationship where the right to make recommendations on such personnel matters is explicitly provided for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement or compensation plan.

Part 4. Reporting incidents of discrimination/harassment

Subpart A. Reporting an incident. Any individual who believes she or he has been or is being subjected to conduct prohibited by Board Policy 1B.1 is encouraged to report the incident to the designated officer. The report/complaint should be brought as soon as possible after an incident occurs.

Any student, faculty member or employee who knows of, receives information about or receives a complaint of discrimination/harassment is strongly encouraged to report the information or complaint to the designated officer of the system office, college, or university.

Subpart B. Duty to report. Administrators and supervisors shall refer allegations of conduct that they reasonably believe may constitute discrimination or harassment under Board Policy 1B.1 to the designated officer, or in consultation with the designated officer may inquire into and resolve such matters.

Subpart C. Reports against a president. A report/complaint against a president of a college or university shall be filed with the system office. However, complaints against a president shall be processed by the college or university if the president's role in the alleged incident was limited to a decision on a recommendation made by another administrator, such as tenure, promotion or non-renewal, and the president had no other substantial involvement in the matter.

Subpart D. Reports against system office employees or Board of Trustees. For reports/complaints that involve allegations against system office employees, the responsibilities identified in this procedure as those of the president are the responsibilities of the chancellor. Reports/complaints that involve allegations against the chancellor or a member of the Board of Trustees shall be referred to the chair or vice chair of the Board for processing. Such reports/complaints may be assigned to appropriate system personnel or outside investigatory assistance may be designated.

Subpart E. False statements prohibited. Any individual who is determined to have provided false information in filing a discrimination report/complaint or during the investigation of such a report/complaint may be subject to disciplinary or corrective action.

Subpart F. Withdrawn complaints. If a complainant no longer desires to pursue a complaint, the system office, colleges, and universities reserve the right to investigate and take appropriate action.

Part 5. Right to representation. In accordance with federal law and applicable collective bargaining agreement and personnel plan language, represented employees may have the right to request and receive union representation during an investigatory meeting.

Nothing in this procedure is intended to expand, diminish or alter in any manner whatsoever any right or remedy available under a collective bargaining agreement, personnel plan or law. Any disciplinary action imposed as a result of an investigation conducted under this procedure will be processed in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan.

Part 6. Investigation and Resolution. The system office, college or university has an affirmative duty to take timely and appropriate action to stop behavior prohibited by Board Policy 1B.1, conduct investigations and take appropriate action to prevent recurring misconduct.

Subpart A. Personal resolution. This procedure neither prevents nor requires the use of informal resolution by an individual who believes he or she has been subject to conduct in violation of Board Policy 1B.1. In such a situation, the individual should clearly explain to the alleged offender as soon as possible after the incident that the behavior is objectionable and must stop. If the behavior does not stop or if the individual believes retaliation may result from the discussion, the individual should report to the designated officer. Under no circumstance shall an individual be required to use personal resolution to address prohibited behaviors.

Subpart B. Information privacy. Confidentiality of information obtained during an investigation cannot be guaranteed; such information, however, will be handled in accordance with applicable federal and state data privacy laws.

Subpart C. Processing the complaint. The designated officer must be contacted in order to initiate a report/complaint under this procedure. The scope of the process used in each complaint/report shall be determined by the designated officer based on the complexity of the allegations, the number and relationship of individuals involved, and other pertinent factors.

1. **Jurisdiction**. The designated officer shall determine whether the report/complaint is one which should be processed through another system office, college or university procedure available to

the complainant; if appropriate, the designated officer shall direct the complainant to that procedure as soon as possible.

- 2. **Conflicts**. The designated officer should identify to the president or chancellor/designee any real or perceived conflict of interest in proceeding as the designated officer for a specific complaint. If the president or chancellor/designee determines that a conflict exists, another designated officer shall be assigned.
- 3. Information provided to complainant. At the time the report/complaint is made, the designated officer shall:

a.) inform the complainant of the provisions of the Board Policy 1B.1 and this procedure;b.) provide a copy of or Web address for Board Policy 1B.1 and this procedure to the complainant;

c.) determine whether other individuals are permitted to accompany the complainant during investigatory interviews and the extent of their involvement; and

d.) inform the complainant of the provisions of Board Policy 1B.1 prohibiting retaliation.

- 4. **Complaint documentation**. The designated officer shall insure that the complaint is documented in writing. The designated officer may request, but not require the complainant to document the complaint in writing using the complaint form of the system office, college or university.
- 5. **Information provided to the respondent**. At the time initial contact is made with the respondent, the designated officer shall inform the respondent in writing of the existence and general nature of the complaint and the provisions of the nondiscrimination policy. At the initial meeting with the respondent, the designated officer shall:

a) provide a copy of or Web address for Board Policy 1B.1 and this procedure to the respondent;

b.) provide sufficient information to the respondent consistent with federal and state data privacy laws to allow the respondent to respond to the substance of the complaint;

c.) explain to the respondent that in addition to being interviewed by the designated officer, the respondent may provide a written response to the allegations;

d.) determine whether other individuals are permitted to accompany the respondent during investigative interviews and the extent of their involvement; and

e.) inform the respondent of the provisions of Board Policy 1B.1 prohibiting retaliation.

6. Investigatory process. The designated officer shall:

a.) conduct a fact-finding inquiry or investigation into the complaint, including appropriate interviews and meetings;

b.) inform the witnesses and other involved individuals of the prohibition against retaliation;

c.) create, gather and maintain investigative documentation as appropriate;

d.) disclose appropriate information to others only on a need to know basis consistent with state and federal law, and provide a data privacy notice in accordance with state law; and e.) handle all data in accordance with applicable federal and state privacy laws.

7. Interim actions.

a.) Employee reassignment or administrative leave. Under appropriate circumstances, the

president or chancellor may, in consultation with system legal counsel and labor relations, reassign or place an employee on administrative leave at any point in time during the report/complaint process. In determining whether to place an employee on administrative leave or reassignment, consideration shall be given to the nature of the alleged behavior, the relationships between the parties, the context in which the alleged incidents occurred and other relevant factors. Any action taken must be consistent with the applicable collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan.

b.) Student summary suspension or other action. Under appropriate circumstances, the president or designee may, in consultation with system legal counsel, summarily suspend a student at any point in time during the report/complaint process. A summary suspension may be imposed only in accordance with Board Policy 3.6 and associated system procedures. After the student has been summarily suspended, the report/complaint process should be completed within the shortest reasonable time period, not to exceed nine (9) class days. During the summary suspension, the student may not enter the campus or participate in any college or university activities without obtaining prior permission from the president or designee. Other temporary measures may be taken in lieu of summary suspension where the president or designee determines such measures are appropriate.

- 8. **No basis to proceed.** At any point during the processing of the complaint, the designated officer may determine that there is no basis to proceed under Board Policy 1B.1. The designated officer shall refer the complaint as appropriate. The designated officer shall notify the complainant and respondent of the outcome as appropriate, in accordance with applicable data privacy laws.
- 9. Timely Completion. Colleges, universities and the system office must provide resources sufficient to complete the investigative process and issue a written response within 60 days after a complaint is made, unless reasonable cause for delay exists. The designated officer shall notify the complainant and respondent if the written response is not expected to be issued within the 60 day period. The college, university or system office must meet any applicable shorter time periods, including those provided in the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Subpart D. Resolution. After processing the complaint the designated officer may consider one or more of the following methods to resolve the complaint as appropriate:

- 1. conduct or coordinate education/training;
- 2. facilitate voluntary meetings between the parties;
- 3. recommend separation of the parties, after consultation with appropriate system office, college or university personnel;
- 4. other possible outcomes may include recommending changes in workplace assignments, enrollment in a different course or program, or other appropriate action;
- 5. the system office, college or university may use alternative dispute resolution or mediation services as a method of resolving discrimination or harassment complaints. Alternative dispute

resolution and mediation options require the voluntary participation of all parties to the complaint;

6. upon completion of the inquiry, the designated officer may dismiss or refer the complaint to others as appropriate.

Subpart E. Decision process. If the above methods have not resolved the complaint within a reasonable period of time to the satisfaction of the designated officer, or the designated officer feels additional steps should be taken, the procedures in this subpart shall be followed.

1. Designated officer. The designated officer shall:

a.) prepare an investigation report and forward it to the decisionmaker for review and decision;
b.) take additional investigative measures as requested by the decisionmaker; and
c) be responsible for coordinating responses to requests for information contained in an investigation report in accordance with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and other applicable law including, but not limited to, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). In determining the appropriate response, the designated officer shall consult with the campus data practice compliance official and/or the Office of General Counsel.

2. **Decision maker.** After receiving the investigation report prepared by the designated officer, the decisionmaker shall:

a.) determine whether additional steps should be taken prior to making the decision. Additional steps may include:

- 1. a request that the designated officer conduct further investigative measures;
- 2. a meeting with the complainant, respondent or other involved individuals. If a meeting involving a represented employee is convened, the complainant or respondent may choose to be accompanied by the bargaining unit representative, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement and federal and state law; and
- 3. a request for additional information which may include a written response from the complainant or respondent relating to the allegations of the complaint.

b.) take other measures deemed necessary to determine whether a violation of Board Policy 1B.1 has been established;

c.) when making the decision, take into account the totality of the circumstances, including the nature and extent of the behaviors, the relationship(s) between the parties, the context in which the alleged incident(s) occurred, and other relevant factors;

d.) determine the nature, scope and timing of disciplinary or corrective action and the process for implementation if a violation of the nondiscrimination policy occurs. This may include consultation with human resources or supervisory personnel to determine appropriate discipline;

e.) As appropriate, consistent with applicable state and federal data privacy laws, report in writing to the complainant, respondent and the designated officer her or his findings, and the basis for those findings, as to whether Board policy 1B.1 has been violated.

f.) Conduct that is determined not to have violated Board policy 1B.1 shall be referred to another procedure for further action, if appropriate.

Part 7. System office, college, or university action. The system office, college, or university shall take the appropriate corrective action based on results of the investigation, and the designated officer shall make appropriate inquiries to ascertain the effectiveness of any corrective or disciplinary action. Complainants are encouraged to report any subsequent conduct that violates Board Policy 1B1.1, as well as allegations of retaliation.

Written notice to parties relating to discipline, resolutions, and/or final dispositions resulting from the report/complaint process is deemed to be official correspondence from the system office, college or university. In accordance with state law, the system office, college or university is responsible for filing the complaint disposition concerning complaints against employees with the Commissioner of Employee Relations within 30 days of final disposition.

Part 8. Appeal.

Subpart A. Filing an appeal. The complainant or the respondent may appeal the decision of the decisionmaker. An appeal must be filed in writing with the president or designee within ten (10) business days after notification of the decision. The appeal must state specific reasons why the complainant or respondent believes the decision was improper. In a complaint against a president or other official who reports directly to the chancellor, an appeal may be considered by the chancellor whether or not the chancellor served as the decisionmaker.

Subpart B. Effect of review. For employees represented by a collective bargaining agreement, an appeal under this procedure is separate and distinct from, and is not in any way related to, any contractual protections or procedures. During the pendency of the appeal disciplinary or corrective action taken as a result of the decision shall be enforced. In addition, in cases involving sanctions of suspension for ten (10) days or longer, students shall be informed of their right to a contested case hearing under Minnesota Statutes §14.

Subpart C. Appeal process. The president or designee shall review the record and determine whether to affirm or modify the decision. The president or designee may receive additional information if the president or designee believes such information would aid in the consideration of the appeal. The decision on appeal shall be made within a reasonable time and the complainant, respondent and designated officer shall be notified in writing of the decision, consistent with applicable state and federal data privacy laws. The decision on appeal exhausts the complainant's and respondent's administrative remedies under this procedure except as provided herein.

Part 9. Education and training. The system office, colleges and universities shall provide education and training programs to promote awareness and prevent discrimination/harassment, such as educational seminars, peer-to-peer counseling, operation of hotlines, self-defense courses, and informational resources. Education and training programs should include education about Board Policy 1B.1 and this procedure. All colleges and universities and the system office shall promote awareness of Board Policy 1B.1 and this procedure, and shall publicly identify the designated officer.

Part 10. Distribution of board policy 1B.1 and this procedure. Information regarding Board Policy 1B.1 and this procedure shall, at a minimum, be distributed to students at the time of registration and to employees at the beginning of employment. Distribution may be accomplished by posting on an

internet Web site, provided all students and employees are directly notified of how to access the policy and procedure by an exact address, and that they may request a paper copy. Copies of the policy and procedure shall be conspicuously posted at appropriate locations at the system office and on college and university campuses at all times and shall include the designated officers' names, locations and telephone numbers.

Designated officers also must be identified by name, location and phone number in informational publications such as student catalogs, student and employee handbooks, bulletin boards, campus Web sites and other appropriate public announcements.

Part 11. Maintenance of report/complaint procedure documentation. During and upon the completion of the complaint process, the complaint file shall be maintained in a secure location in the office of the designated officer for the system office, college or university in accordance with the applicable records retention schedule. Access to the data shall be in accordance with the respective collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan, the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act or other applicable law.

Discrimination/Harassment Complaint Form

https://www.rctc.edu/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Discrimination-Harassment-Complaint-Form-1.pdf

Minnesota State Colleges and Universities Discrimination/Harassment Complaint Form	Name of RESPONDENT #2:
Date:	City:State: Zip:
	Phone: (work) (kome)
Name of COMPLAINANT: (if more than one complainant, complete intake form for each)	
(if mate man one comptainant, complete intake form for each) Address (local):	Sex: 🗆 Male 🗆 Female
.ddress (residence):	Status: 🗆 Student 🗆 Faculty 🗆 Staff 🗆 Administrator 🗆 External/Non-Campus
ity:Zip:	
Phone: (work) (home)	Name of RESPONDENT #3: (if more than one respondent, hist complete information for each)
ex 🗆 Male 🗆 Female	Address (local);
tatus: 🗆 Student 🗇 Faculty 🔲 Staff 🗇 Administrator 🗇 External/Non-Campus	Address (residence):
	Cíty: State: Zip:
YPE OF COMPLAINT: 🗆 DISCRIMINATION 🗆 HARASSMENT 💷 RETALIATION	Phone: (work)(home)
WAS DISCRIMINATED/HARASSED/RETALIATED AGAINST ON THE BASIS OF MY:	Sex. 🗆 Male 🖽 Female
2 Rare 🗆 Age 🗆 Relimce on Public Assistance 2 Sex 🔲 National Origin 🔄 Sexual Orientation	Status: 🗆 Studens 🗆 Faculty 🗆 Staff 🗔 Administrator 🕕 External/Non-Czunpus
□ Color □ Disability □ Marital Status □ Creed □ Religion □ Membership'Activity in Local Commission	Parallel and a second se
Gender Identity Gender Expression Gender Expression	Name of RESPONDENT #4: (if more than one respondent, list complete information for each) Address (local):
I believe I was discriminated harassed retaliated against by: Name of RESPONDENT:	Address (local):
Versie et a val de la faithe la faithe and anne a gaine et gaine et g men et RESPONDENT: ((if more than one respondent, list complete information for each) Address (local):	Address (residence):
Adress (residence):	City:State:Zip:
City:State:Zip:	Phone: (work)(home)
Phone: (work) (home)	Sex: 🗆 Male 🖾 Female
iex: 🗆 Male 🗆 Female	Status: 🗆 Student 🗆 Faculty 🗆 Staff 💭 Administrator 💭 External/Non-Campus
Status: 🗆 Student 🗆 Faculty 🗆 Staff 🔂 Administrator 🗇 External-Non-Compus	

EXPLAIN YOUR COMPLAINT IN DETAIL. INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION. ADD ADDITIONAL PAGES IF NECESSARY. ATTACH DOCUMENTS YOU BELIEVE MAY BE HELPFUL IN INVESTIGATING YOUR COMPLAINT.

- Describe the specific incident(s) of discrimination harasument/retaliation. List times, dates, locations, uanes and titles of the people involved in the incident(s).
 Explain twy you believe that you were discriminated harassed/retaliated against because of your protected class status (nee, age, gender, disability, etc.).
 Provide the annes and titles of people you believe tware the test dance favorably than you due to your protected class status. List the protected class status (nee, age, gender, disability, etc.) of each person.

Record Control
Annual
A MARKAN AND A MARKAN A

Name of WITNESS #1:			
Name of WITNESS #1:(if Address (local):	f more than one witness, list	t complete information for each)	
Address (rezidence):			
		Zip:	
Phone: (work)	(home)		
What information can this witness			
Name of WITNESS #2:(ii	more than one witness. list	complete information for each)	
Address (local):			
Address (residence):			
City:	State:	Zip:	
What information can this witness			
·····			
Name of WITNESS #3:(if Address (local):			
(if Address (local):	f more than one witness, his	t complete information for each)	
Address (residence):			
		Zip:	
What information can this witness]	provide?		
What information can this witness	provide?		

LIST DOCUMENTS YOU BELIEVE MAY HELP IN INVESTIGATING YOUR COMPLAINT. PROVIDE THE NAME, DATE AND EXPLANATION OF THE CONTENTS OF EACH DOCUMENT. ADD MORE PAGES IF NECESSARY.

3

NAME OF DOCUMENT 41; _____ DATE: _____ EXPLANATION OF CONTENTS:

NAME OF DOCUMENT #2: _____ EXPLANATION OF CONTENTS:

NAME OF DOCUMENT #3: _____ DATE: _____

EXPLANATION OF CONTENTS:

5

39

4

C. Minnesota State's Sexual Violence Policy, 1B.3

Part 1. Policy statement

Sexual violence is an intolerable intrusion into the most personal and private rights of an individual, and is prohibited at Minnesota State Colleges and Universities. Minnesota State is committed to eliminating sexual violence in all forms and will take appropriate remedial action against any individual found responsible for acts in violation of this policy. Acts of sexual violence may also constitute violations of criminal or civil law or of other Board Policies that may require separate proceedings. To further its commitment against sexual violence, Minnesota State provides reporting options, an investigative and disciplinary process, prevention training, and other related services as appropriate.

Subpart A. Application of policy to students, employees, Board of Trustees and others

This policy applies to all Minnesota State students and employees, Board of Trustees and to others, as appropriate, where incidents of sexual violence on system property have been reported. Reports of sexual violence committed by a student at a location other than on system property are covered by this policy pursuant to the factors listed in Board Policy 3.6, Part 2. Reports of sexual violence committed by a system employee at a location other than system property are covered by this policy.

Reports of sexual violence committed on system property by individuals who are not students or employees are subject to appropriate actions by Minnesota State, including but not limited to pursuing criminal or civil action against them.

Allegations of discrimination or harassment are governed by Board Policy 1B.1.

Subpart B. College and university policies

Each Minnesota State college and university shall adopt a clear, understandable written policy on sexual violence that applies to its campus community, including but not limited to its students and employees. The policy content and implementation must be consistent with the standards in this policy and System Procedure 1B.3.1.

Part 2. Definitions

The following definitions apply to this policy and System Procedure 1B.3.1.

Affirmative consent

Consent is informed, freely given, and mutually understood willingness to participate in sexual activity that is expressed by clear, unambiguous, and affirmative words or actions. It is the responsibility of the person who wants to engage in sexual activity to ensure that the other person has consented to engage in the sexual activity. Consent must be present throughout the entire sexual activity and can be revoked at any time. If coercion, intimidation, threats, and/or physical force are used, there is no consent. If the complainant is mentally or physically incapacitated or impaired so that the complainant cannot understand the fact, nature, or extent of the sexual situation, there is no consent; this includes conditions due to alcohol or drug consumption, or being asleep or unconscious. A lack of protest, absence of resistance, or silence alone does not constitute consent, and past consent to sexual

activities does not imply ongoing future consent. The existence of a dating relationship between the people involved or the existence of a past sexual relationship does not prove the presence of, or otherwise provide the basis for, an assumption of consent. Whether the respondent has taken advantage of a position of influence over the complainant may be a factor in determining consent.

Dating, intimate partner, and relationship violence

Violence including physical harm or abuse, and threats of physical harm or abuse, arising out of a personal intimate relationship. This violence also may be called domestic abuse or spousal/partner abuse and may be subject to criminal prosecution under Minnesota law.

Employee

Any individual employed by Minnesota State, its colleges and universities and system office, including student workers.

Non-forcible sex acts

Non-forcible acts include unlawful sexual acts where consent is not relevant, such as sexual contact with an individual under the statutory age of consent, as defined by Minnesota law, or between persons who are related to each other within degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.

Subpart B. Sexual assault

An actual, attempted, or threatened sexual act with another person without that person's affirmative consent. Sexual assault is often a criminal act that can be prosecuted under Minnesota law, as well as form the basis for discipline under Minnesota State student codes of conduct and employee disciplinary standards. Sexual assault includes but is not limited to:

- Involvement without consent in any sexual act in which there is force, expressed or implied, or use of duress or deception upon the victim. Forced sexual intercourse is included in this definition, as are the acts commonly referred to as date rape or acquaintance rape. This definition also includes the coercing, forcing, or attempting to coerce or force sexual intercourse or a sexual act on another.
- 2. Involvement in any sexual act when the victim is unable to give consent.
- 3. Intentional and unwelcome touching of a person's intimate parts (defined as primary genital area, groin, inner thigh, buttocks, or breast); or coercing, forcing, or attempting to coerce or force another to touch a person's intimate parts.
- 4. Offensive sexual behavior directed at another, such as indecent exposure or voyeurism.

Sexual violence

A continuum of conduct that includes sexual assault, non-forcible sex acts, dating and relationship violence, stalking, as well as aiding acts of sexual violence.

Stalking

Conduct directed at a specific person that is unwanted, unwelcome, or unreciprocated and that would cause reasonable people to fear for their safety or the safety of others or to suffer substantial emotional distress.

Student

All persons who:

- 1. Are enrolled in one or more courses, either credit or non-credit, through a college or university; or
- 2. Withdraw, transfer, or graduate after an alleged violation of the code of student conduct; or
- 3. Are not officially enrolled for a particular term but who have a continuing relationship with the college or university; or
- 4. Have been notified of their acceptance for admission or have initiated the process of application for admission or financial aid; or
- 5. Are not college or university employees and are not enrolled in the institution but live in a college or university residence hall.

System property

The facilities and land owned, leased, or under the primary control of Minnesota State, its Board of Trustees, system office, colleges, and universities.

D. Minnesota State's Sexual Violence Procedure, 1B.3.1

Part 1. Purpose

This procedure provides a process through which individuals alleging sexual violence may pursue a complaint, pursuant to Board Policy 1B.3 Sexual Violence Policy prohibiting sexual violence.

This procedure is intended to protect the rights and privacy of both the complainant and respondent and other involved individuals, as well as to prevent retaliation and reprisal.

Part 2. Definitions

The definitions in Policy 1B.3 also apply to this procedure.

Campus security authority

Campus security authority includes the following categories of individuals at a college or university:

A college or university security department;

Any individual who has campus security responsibilities in addition to a college or university security department;

Any individual or organization identified in a college or university security policy as an individual or organization to which students and employees should report criminal offenses;

An official of a college or university who has significant responsibility for student and campus activities, including, but not limited to, student housing, student discipline, and campus judicial proceedings; advisors to recognized student organizations; and athletic coaches. Professional counselors, whose official responsibilities include providing mental health counseling, and who are functioning within the scope of their license or certification, are not included in this definition.

Part 3. Reporting Incidents of Sexual Violence

Subpart A. Prompt reporting encouraged

Complainants of sexual violence may report incidents at any time, but are strongly encouraged to make reports promptly in order to best preserve evidence for a potential legal or disciplinary proceeding.

Complainants are strongly encouraged to report incidents of sexual violence to law enforcement for the location where the incident occurred. Complainants are also encouraged to contact the local victim/survivor services office, counseling and health care providers, campus Title IX coordinators, or Minnesota State Colleges and Universities campus security authorities for appropriate action.

Subpart B. Assistance in reporting

When informed of an alleged incident of sexual violence, all Minnesota State Colleges and Universities students and employees are urged to encourage and assist complainants, as needed, to report the incident to local law enforcement, local victim/survivor services, campus Title IX coordinator, or campus security authorities.

Campus security authorities, when informed of an alleged incident of sexual violence, shall promptly assist the complainant, as requested, including providing guidance in filing complaints with outside agencies, such as law enforcement; obtaining appropriate assistance from victim/survivor services or medical treatment professionals; and filing a complaint with campus officials responsible for enforcing the student conduct code or employee conduct standards.

When appropriate, Minnesota State Colleges and Universities may pursue legal action against a respondent, including, but not limited to, trespass or restraining orders, in addition to disciplinary action under the applicable student or employee conduct standard. A college or university may take actions it deems necessary or appropriate in response to all protection, restraining, or no-contact orders.

Part 4. Confidentiality of reporting

Subpart A. Confidential reports

Because of laws concerning government data contained in Minn. Stat. § 13 Government Data Practices, colleges and universities cannot guarantee confidentiality to those who report incidents of sexual violence except where those reports are privileged communications with licensed healthcare professionals. Some off-campus reports also may be legally privileged by law, such as reports to clergy, private legal counsel, or healthcare professionals.

Subpart B. Reports to campus security authorities

Complainants of sexual violence may contact any campus security authority for appropriate assistance or to report incidents. Absolute confidentiality of reports made to campus security authorities cannot be promised. However, campus security authorities shall not disclose personally identifiable information about a complainant of sexual violence without the complainant's consent, except as may be required or permitted by law. There may be instances in which a college, university, or the system office determines it needs to act regardless of whether the parties have reached a personal resolution or if the complainant requests that no action be taken. In such instances, Minnesota State Colleges and Universities will investigate and take appropriate action, taking care to protect the identity of the complainant and any other reporter in accordance with this procedure.

Subpart C. Required reports

Any campus security authority or any college or university employee with supervisory or studentadvising responsibility who has been informed of an alleged incident of sexual violence shall follow college or university procedures for making a report for the annual crime statistics report. In addition, the campus security authority shall report to other school officials, as appropriate, such as the campus affirmative action office, the campus office responsible for administering the student conduct code, and/or the designated Title IX compliance coordinator, in order to initiate any applicable investigative or other resolution procedures.

Campus security authorities may be obligated to report to law enforcement the fact that a sexual assault has occurred, but the name of or other personally identifiable information about the complainant will be provided only with the consent of the complainant, except as may be required or permitted by law.

Part 5. Policy notices

Subpart A. Distribution of policy to students

Each college or university shall, at a minimum, at the time of registration make available to each student information about its sexual violence policy and procedure, including its online reporting system that allows for anonymous reporting, and shall additionally post a copy of its policy and procedure at appropriate locations on campus at all times. A college or university may distribute its policy and procedure by posting on an Internet or Intranet website, provided all students are directly notified of how to access the policy by an exact address, and that they may request a paper copy.

Subpart B. Distribution of policy to employees

Colleges, universities, and the system office shall make available to all employees a copy of the sexual violence policy and procedure. Distribution may be accomplished by posting on an Internet or Intranet website, provided all employees are directly notified of the exact address of the policy and procedure as well as the option of receiving a paper copy upon request.

Subpart C. Required notice

Each college or university shall have a sexual violence policy, which must include the notice provisions in this part.

Notice of complainant options

Following a report of sexual violence the complainant must be promptly notified of:

Where and how to obtain immediate medical assistance. Complainants should be informed that timely reporting and a medical examination within 72 hours are critical in preserving evidence of sexual assault and proving a criminal or civil case against a perpetrator. Complainants should be told, however, that they may report incidents of sexual violence at any time.

Where and how to report incidents of sexual violence to local law enforcement officials, and/or appropriate college, university, or system contacts for employees, students, and others. Such contacts should be identified by name, location, and phone number for 24-hour availability, as applicable.

Resources for where and how complainants may obtain on- or off-campus counseling, mental health, or other support services.

Notice of complainant rights

Complainants must be notified of the following:

Their right to file criminal charges with local law enforcement officials in sexual assault cases;

Rights under the crime victims bill of rights, Minn. Stat. §§ 611A.01 – 611A.06, including the right to assistance from the Crime Victims Reparations Board and the commissioner of public safety;

Availability of prompt assistance from campus officials, upon request, in notifying the appropriate campus investigating authorities and law enforcement officials, and, at the direction of law enforcement authorities, assistance in obtaining, securing, and maintaining evidence in connection with a sexual violence incident;

Assistance available from campus authorities in preserving for a sexual violence complainant materials relating to a campus disciplinary proceeding;

Complaints of incidents of sexual violence made to campus security authorities must be promptly and appropriately investigated and resolved;

Upon a sexual assault complainant's request, the college, university, or system office may take action to prevent unwanted contact with the alleged assailant, including, but not limited to, transfer of the complainant and/or the respondent to alternative classes, or to a work site or to alternative college-owned housing, if such alternatives are available and feasible.

Upon the request of the complainant, students who reported sexual assaults to the college or university and subsequently chose to transfer to another college or university will be provided with information about resources for victims of sexual assault at the college or university to which the complainant is transferring

Part 6. Investigation and Disciplinary Procedures

Subpart A. Immediate action

A college or university may, at any time during the report/complaint process, reassign or place on administrative leave an employee alleged to have violated Board Policy 1B.3, in accordance with the procedures in System Procedure 1B.1.1. Such action must be consistent with the applicable collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan.

A college or university may summarily suspend or take other temporary measures against a student alleged to have committed a violation of Board Policy 1B.3, in accordance with System Procedure 1B.1.1 or Board Policy 3.6.

Subpart B. General principles

Colleges, universities, and the system office shall use System Procedure 1B.1.1 Report/Complaint of

Discrimination/Harassment Investigations and Resolution when investigating complaints of sexual violence. Procedures used in response to a complaint of sexual violence should avoid requiring complainants to follow any plan of action, to prevent the possibility of re-victimization.

College and university investigation and disciplinary procedures concerning allegations of sexual violence against employees or students must:

Be respectful of the needs and rights of individuals involved and treat them with dignity;

Not suggest to the complainant that he or she was at fault for the sexual assault or should have behaved differently to prevent the assault;

Proceed as promptly as possible

Permit a student complainant and a student respondent to have the same opportunity to have an appropriate support person or advisor present at any interview or hearing, in a manner consistent with the governing procedures and applicable data practices law;

Afford employees the right to representation consistent with the appropriate collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan;

Be conducted in accordance with applicable due process standards and privacy laws;

Simultaneously inform both the complainant and respondent of the outcome in a timely manner, as permitted by applicable privacy law.

Be based on a preponderance of evidence standard, meaning that it is more likely than not that the policy, procedure, or code has been violated.

The past sexual history of the complainant and respondent must be deemed irrelevant except as that history may directly relate to the incident being considered.

A respondent's use of any drug, including alcohol, judged to be related to an offense may be considered to be an exacerbating rather than mitigating circumstance.

Subpart C. Relationship to parallel proceedings

In general, college, university, and system office investigation and disciplinary procedures for allegations of sexual violence will proceed independent of any action taken in criminal or civil courts. A college or university need not, and in most cases should not, delay its proceedings while a parallel legal action is ongoing. If a college or university is aware of a criminal proceeding involving the alleged incident, they may contact the prosecuting authority to coordinate when feasible. Criminal or civil court proceedings are not a substitute for college, university, and system office procedures.

Subpart D. Memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement

Each college or university shall enter into a memorandum of understanding with the primary law enforcement agencies that serve their campus(es). Prior to the start of each academic year, each college or university shall distribute an electronic copy of the MOU to all employees on the campus that are subject to the memorandum. Colleges and universities are exempt from the MOU requirement if they and local or county law enforcement agencies establish a sexual assault protocol team to facilitate effective cooperation and collaboration between the college or university and law enforcement.

Subpart E. False statements prohibited

Colleges, universities, and the system office take allegations of sexual violence very seriously and recognizes the consequences such allegations may have on a respondent as well as the complainant. Any individual who knowingly provides false information regarding the filing of a complaint or report of sexual violence, or who provides false information during the investigation of such a complaint or report, may be subject to discipline or, under certain circumstances, legal action. Complaints of conduct that are found not to violate policy are not assumed to be false.

Subpart F. Withdrawn complaint

If a complainant no longer desires to pursue a complaint through the college's or university's proceeding, the college or university reserves the right to investigate and resolve the complaint as it deems appropriate.

Subpart G. Discretion to pursue certain allegations

Minnesota State Colleges and Universities reserves discretion whether to pursue alleged violations of policy under appropriate circumstances, including, but not limited to, a determination that an effective investigation is not feasible because of the passage of time, or because the respondent is no longer a student or employee of the college, or university, or system office.

Subpart H. Sanctions

Sanctions that may be imposed if a finding is made that sexual violence has occurred include, but are not limited to, suspension, or expulsion of students, or termination from employment for employees. The appropriate sanction will be determined on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the severity of the conduct, the student's or employee's previous disciplinary history, and other factors as appropriate.

Witnesses or victims who report in good faith an incident of sexual violence will not be sanctioned by the college, university, or system office for admitting in the report to a violation of the student conduct policy on the use of alcohol or drugs.

Subpart I. Retaliation prohibited

Actions by a student or employee intended as retaliation, reprisal, or intimidation against an individual for making a complaint or participating in any way in a report or investigation under this policy are prohibited and are subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

Part 7. Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Subpart A. Campus-wide training

Colleges, universities, and the system office shall:

Include in their sexual violence policy a description of educational programs that they offer to students and employees to promote the awareness of sexual violence offenses, including sexual violence prevention measures and procedures for responding to incidents.

Provide training on awareness of sexual violence prevention measures and procedures for responding to incidents of sexual violence. At a minimum, all incoming students and all new employees must be provided with this training;

Emphasize in their educational programs the importance of preserving evidence for proof of a criminal offense, safe and positive options for bystander intervention, and information on risk reduction to

recognize warning signs of abusive behavior and risk associated with the perpetration of sexual violence.

Subpart B. Other training and education

Colleges and universities and affiliated student organizations are encouraged to develop educational programs, brochures, posters, and other means of information to decrease the incidence of sexual violence and advise individuals of the legal and other options available if they are the complainants of an incident or if they learn of such an incident.

Subpart C. Training for individuals charged with decision-making authority

Prior to serving as either an investigator or decision maker for complaints under this procedure, administrators shall complete investigator or decision-maker training provided by the system office.

Investigators/decisionmakers, campus security officers, and anyone else involved in the adjudication process must receive annual training on the issues related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking and how to conduct an investigation and hearing process that protects the safety of victims and promotes accountability.

Part 8. Maintenance of report/complaint procedure documentation

Data that is collected, created, received, maintained, or disseminated about incidents of sexual violence will be handled in accordance with the privacy requirements of Minn. Stat. § 13 Government Data Practices and other applicable laws.

Information on reports of incidents of sexual violence that are made to Campus Security Authorities must be documented in accordance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security and Campus Crime Statistics Act, codified at 20 U.S.C. § 1092 (f). The information will be used to report campus crime statistics on college and university campuses as required by the Clery Act.

During and upon the completion of the complaint process, the complaint file must be maintained in a secure location. Access to complaint file information, including information stored electronically, must be in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan, the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, and other applicable law and policy.

Each college, university and the system office shall annually report statistics on sexual assaults to the Minnesota Office of Higher Education. Additionally, the report must be published on each college and university website in accordance with state law.

Sexual Violence Complaint Form

https://cm.maxient.com/reportingform.php?RochesterCTC&layout_id=1

	and contacting the complainant, respondent and/or any potential witnesses.
ROCHEST'ER	Individuals who choose to file anonymous reports are advised that it may be very difficult for the College to follow up or take specific action, where information is limited. Anonymous reports may be used for Clery Act data collection purposes.
Sexual Misconduct Reporting Form	Background Information
hank you for reporting. Your safety is of the utmost importance to us. If you wish to make I formal Campus Safety or police report, OR if this is an EMERGENCY, Immediately contact Campus Safety at 507-285-7262 or the Rochester Police Department by dialing 911.	Please provide as much information as you are comfortable sharing. NOTE: If you want to remain anonymous, do NOT include your name or other contact information.
Contacting police does not require you to pursue legal action.	
his form may be used to report sexual or gender-based misconduct including sexual ssault, dating/domestic violence, statking, sexual harassment or discrimination. This form an be utilized by students, employees, and members of the community wishing to file a port on their own behalf or by anyone wishing to file a report on behalf of a Rochester	Your rok/postion/uite:
Continunity and Technical College (RCTC) community member. you have experienced sexual violence and you are not sure you want to report to RCTC, u may call the Olmsted County 24-hour crisis me at (507) 289-0636 for support and	Your phone number.
issistance. You may choose to use this form to report anonymously by not including your ontact information.	Your eme i address:
ubmissions are not continually monitored and will typically be reviewed on the next usingss day.	Your physical address:
This Is a secure reporting format accessible only to the appropriate RCTC officials, ncluding the Office of Student Rights and Responsibilities and the Title IX Coordinator. fou are not required to complete the entire form in order for the complexit to be	Date of incident (argument)
Ibmitted; however, you must complete fields denoted with an asterisk. The Collegr	mmtddiyyyy
1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
ne of incldert	Phone number
J	Email address
cation of Incident (Require);	
easo select a location	Hall/Address
cife location:	
location.	Add another party
	Add another party Information
pecific focation: Involved Parties Please list the individual(s) involved who engaged in the conduct, any witnesses, and any person who may have been harmed, if the incident happened to you, please include your own information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed fields as you can provide. For non-students, please list as Social Security Number or	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail as you are able or would like to share.
(nvolved Parties Please list the Individual(s) involved who engaged in the conduct, any witnesses, and my person who may have been harmed. If the incident happened to you, please nclude your own Information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed helds as you can provide. For non-students, please list a Social Security Number or rivers License number in the block labeled ID Number if available.	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail
Ivolved Parties ease list the individual(s) involved who engaged in the conduct, any vitnesses, and y person who may have been harmed. If the incident happened to you, please clude your own information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed liss as you can provide. For non-students, please list a Social Security Number or rivers License number in the block labeled ID Number if available.	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail as you are able or would like to share.
nvolved Parties lease list the Individual(s) involved who engaged in the conduct, any witnesses, and ny person who may have been harmed. If the Incident happened to you, please ridude your own Information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed elds as you can provide. For non-students, please list a Social Security Number or	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail as you are able or would like to share. Narrative of the incident describing what heppened, excurred If you have reported the incident to any of the following, please check below: ytegated, Campus Sefety and Security
nvolved Parties lease list the Individual(s) involved who engaged in the conduct, any witnesses, and ny person who may have been harmed. If the incident happened to you, please nclude your own Information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed elds as you can provide. For non-students, please list a Social Security Number or trivers License number in the block labeled ID Number if available. Name Perceived Gender	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail as you are able or would like to share. Narrative of the incident describing what happened. (tecured) If you have reported the incident to any of the following, please check below: the searce; Campus Safety and Security Office of Student R ghts and Responsibilities Rechester Police Department
nvolved Parties lease list the Individual(s) involved who engaged in the conduct, any witnesses, and ry person who may have been harmed. If the Incident happened to you, please dude your own information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed alds as you can provide. For non-students, please list a Social Security Number or rivers License number in the block labeled ID Number if available. Name Percehved Gender Select Role D Number	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail as you are able or would like to share. Narrative of the incident describing what beppened. (recurre) If you have reported the incident to any of the following, please check below. #regard, Campus Safety and Security Office of Student Rights and Responsibilities
Involved Parties Please list the Individual(s) involved who angaged in the conduct, any witnesses, and my person who may have been harmed. If the Incident happened to you please indude your own information. To the best of your ability, include as many of the listed selfs as you can provide. For non-students, please list a Social Security Number or Drivers License number In the block labeled ID Number if available. Name Parcehved Geader Select Role	Information Please provide a narrative and information about the incident including as much detail as you are able or would like to share. Narrative of the incident describing what heppened. (ecc.red) If you have reported the incident to any of the following, please check below. prepared, [coc.red] If you have reported the incident to any of the following, please check below. prepared, [coc.red] O Campus Safety and Security Office of Student R glus and Responsibilities Rechester Police Department Other local law enforcement agency

O Family	
① Friend	
O Coursele/Therapist	
Hospital/madical personnel	
C) Other	
CT None	
🗇 Unkotwn	
Supporting Documentation	
Photos, video, email, and other supporting documents may	be attached below 568
maximum total size.	
Attachments require time to upload, so please be patient	after submitting this form.
Choose thesite upload	Chease #Jes
Email are a copy of this report	
Submit report	

E. Minnesota State's Access and Accommodation for Individuals with Disabilities Policy, 1B.4

Part 1. Policy Statement.

Minnesota State Colleges and Universities is committed to ensuring its programs, services and activities are accessible to individuals with disabilities, through its compliance with state and federal laws. The system recognizes that individuals with disabilities may need accommodations to have equally effective opportunities to participate in or benefit from the system's programs, services and activities.

Part 2. Definitions. An individual with a disability:

Subpart A. An individual with a disability:

- 1. Any person who has a physical or mental impairment which materially limits one or more of the person's major life activities.
- 2. Any person who has a record of such impairment which means that a person has a history of or has been classified as having a mental or physical impairment that materially limits one or more major life activities.

Subpart B. Qualified individual with a disability. An individual who, with or without reasonable modifications to rules, policies, or practices, the removal of architectural, communication, or transportation barriers, or the provision of auxiliary aids and services, meets the essential eligibility requirements for receipt of services or participation in a system office, college, or university program or activity. Essential eligibility requirements include, but are not limited to, academic and technical standards requisite to admission or participation in an education program or activity.

Subpart C. Personal devices and services may include wheelchairs; individually prescribed devices, such as prescription eyeglasses or hearing aids; readers for personal use or study; or services of a personal nature including assistance in eating, toileting, or dressing.

Part 3. General Access Policy.

Colleges, universities and the system office shall provide access to programs, services and activities to qualified individuals with known disabilities as required by law. An individual requesting an accommodation may be required to provide documentation of eligibility for the accommodation.

Part 4. Availability and Notice.

Colleges, universities, and the system office shall post notices to the public in an accessible format stating 1) prohibition against discrimination on the basis of disability, and 2) contact information for the person designated to provide information about or respond to requests for reasonable accommodation.

Part 5. Reasonable Accommodations.

Subpart A. Programs, Services, and Activities. Colleges, universities and the system office shall make reasonable accommodations to ensure access to programs, services, and activities as required by law. Access means that a qualified individual with a disability will not be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of the programs, services, or activities, nor will the individual be subjected to discrimination. Reasonable accommodations may include modifications to: rules, policies, or practices; the removal of architectural, communication, or transportation barriers; provision of auxiliary aids or the provision of equally effective programs, services, or activities. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, accommodations will not be provided 1) for personal devices or services even though the individual may be a qualified individual with a disability, or 2) that result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of a service, program, or activity or in undue financial or administrative burdens.

Subpart B. Employment. System Procedure 1B.0.1, Reasonable Accommodations in Employment, applies to accommodation requests by employees and applicants for employment.

Part 6. Offered and/or Sponsored Services or Activities for Qualified Students with Disabilities.

Colleges and universities have a responsibility to provide a qualified student with a disability access to services and activities that are operated or sponsored by the institution or that receive significant assistance from the institution. Such access shall be provided in a reasonable manner as required by law. At a minimum, the following must be available to qualified students with disabilities:

- 1. support, counseling, and information services that may include support groups, individual counseling, career counseling and assessment, and referral services;
- 2. academic assistance services that may include assistive devices, early registration services, early syllabus availability, course selection, program advising, course work assistance, testing assistance and modification, and tutoring; and
- 3. coordination services that may include personnel acting on the student's behalf and serving as the primary contact and coordinator for students needing services, assistance in working individually with faculty and administrators, intervention procedures, and grievance procedures.

Part 7. Process.

Each college and university shall establish a process for an individual with a disability to request an accommodation to access the institution's programs, services, or activities consistent with state and federal laws. The process for individuals with disabilities to request an accommodation must, at a minimum include the following:

a. Provide the requesting individual with a copy of Board Policy 1B.4.

b. Assignment and identification of a staff member responsible for making a determination about the request for accommodation or the delivery of services.

c. Provide a process for appealing a denial of a request for accommodation.

F. Minnesota State's Reasonable Accommodations in Employment System Procedure, 1B.0.1

Part 1. Purpose. This procedure sets forth the process to be used for responding to requests for reasonable accommodations in employment based on an applicant's or employee's disability. The scope of this procedure is limited to reasonable accommodations, and is not intended to fully describe other provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act or the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

Part 2. Reasonable Accommodations in Employment. It is the policy of Minnesota State to encourage the employment and promotion of any qualified individual including qualified individuals with disabilities. The system office, college or university will not discriminate in providing reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with a disability in regard to job application procedures, hiring, advancement, discharge, employee compensation, job training or other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment.

Part 3. Definitions. For purposes of this procedure, the following terms have the meaning given them.

Subpart A. Employer: The employer is the system office, college or university.

Subpart B. Essential Functions: Essential functions are the fundamental job duties of the position in question. The term does not include the marginal functions of the position.

1. A job function may be considered essential for any of several reasons, including but not limited to the following:

a. The function may be essential because the reason the position exists is to perform that function;

b. The function may be essential because of the limited number of employees available among whom the performance of that job function can be distributed; and/or

c. The function may be highly specialized so that the incumbent in the position is hired for his or her expertise or ability to perform the particular function.

- 1. Evidence of whether a particular function is essential includes, but is not limited to:
- a. The employer's judgment as to which functions are essential;
- b. Written job descriptions;

- c. The amount of time spent on the job performing the function;
- d. The consequences of not requiring the incumbent to perform the function;
- e. The terms of a collective bargaining agreement;
- f. The work experience of past incumbents in the job; and/or
- g. The current work experience of incumbents in similar jobs.

Subpart C. Individual with a Disability: An individual with a disability for the purposes of determining reasonable accommodations is any applicant, current employee, including student employees, or employees seeking promotion, who has a physical or mental impairment which substantially or materially limits one or more of such individuals major life activities. Generally, a disabling physical or mental condition which is expected to be temporary and from which the individual is expected to recover is not a disability under this procedure.

Subpart D. Qualified Individual with a Disability: A qualified individual with a disability is an individual with a disability who meets the requisite skill, education, experience and other job-related requirements of the job and who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the job.

Subpart E. Reasonable Accommodations: A reasonable accommodation is a modification or adjustment to a job or employment practice or the work environment that enables a qualified individual with a disability to perform the essential functions of the job as identified at the time of the reasonable accommodation request and to access equal employment opportunities. Reasonable accommodations may also include those things which make a facility and its operations readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. Under the law, the employer has a responsibility to make reasonable accommodations for individuals with a disability only if the disability is known and it is not an undue hardship under Part 6, Subpart C.

Part 4. Identification of Assigned Staff Member. The system office, and each college and university shall assign and identify a staff member responsible for administering requests for reasonable accommodations.

Part 5. Right to Representation. In accordance with applicable collective bargaining agreement language, employees may have the right to request and receive union representation during the reasonable accommodations process.

Part 6. Providing Reasonable Accommodations.

Subpart A. Job Relatedness. Reasonable accommodations will be provided only for job-related needs of individuals with a disability. The primary factor in evaluating an accommodation's job relatedness is whether the accommodation specifically assists the individual to perform the essential functions of the job as identified at the time of the reasonable accommodation request. If the requested accommodation is primarily for the benefit of the individual with a disability to assist that individual in daily personal activities, the employer is not required to provide the accommodation. The appropriate

reasonable accommodation is best determined through a flexible, interactive process that involves both the employer and the qualified individual with a disability; it may include the appropriate union representative as provided by the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Subpart B. Essential Functions. The system office, college or university may deny employment or advancement in employment based on the inability of an individual with a disability to perform the essential functions of the job and may decline to make accommodations to the physical or mental needs of an employee or job applicant with a disability if:

a. the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the system office, college or university as provided under Subpart C.; or

b. the individual with a disability, with or without reasonable accommodations, is not qualified to perform the essential functions of that particular job; or

c. having the individual in the job would create a direct threat because of a significant risk to the health and safety of the individual or others and the risk cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation.

Subpart C. Undue Hardship: In determining whether providing a reasonable accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the employer, the factors to be considered include:

1. The nature and net cost of the accommodation needed;

2. The overall financial resources of the employer involved in the provision of the reasonable accommodation, the number of persons employed, and the effect on expenses and resources;

3. The overall financial resources of the employer, the overall size of the business of the employer with respect to the number of its employees, and the number, type and location of its facilities;

4. The type of operation or operations of the employer, including the composition, structure and functions of the workforce, and the geographic separateness and administrative or fiscal relationship of the employer in question to the covered entity; and

5. The impact of the accommodation upon the operation of the employer, including the impact on the ability of other employees to perform their duties and the impact on the employer's ability to conduct business.

Subpart D. Documentation. Documentation of a disability is required as part of the reasonable accommodation process unless the nature and extent of the disability is already known to the employer, or as a practical matter, the requested accommodation is minimal and the employer makes modifications for its convenience, regardless of whether the employee or applicant meets the requirements for a reasonable accommodation under this procedure.

Subpart E. Choice of Accommodations. The employer is not required to provide the specific accommodation requested by the individual and may choose an effective accommodation which is less expensive or easier to provide. Accommodations provided to the individual are the financial responsibility of the employer.

Subpart F. Request Process. The system office, colleges and universities are responsible for establishing a process for individuals with disabilities to make requests for reasonable accommodations in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act or the Minnesota Human Rights Act. Such process should include the following:

1. Minnesota State policy statement and definitions;

2. Assignment and identification of a staff member responsible for administering requests for reasonable accommodations;

3. Provide a process for appealing a reasonable accommodations decision.

Part 7. Application. Nothing in this procedure is intended to expand, diminish or alter the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act or the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

Request for Reasonable Accommodation Form

Rochester Community and Technical College	
Employee/Applicant Request for Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") Reasonable Accommodation Form	 What, if any, employment benefits are you having difficulty accessing?
Rochester Community and Technical College is committed to complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (*ADA*) and the Minnesota Human Righs Act (*MHRA*). To be eligible for an ADA accommodation, you must be 1) qualified to perform the essential functions of the position and 2) have a disability that substantially or materially limits a major life activity or function. The ADA Coordinator/Designee will review each request on an Individualized case-by-case basis to determine whether or not an accommodation can be made.	3. What limitation, as result of your physical or mental impairment, is interfering with your ability to perform the functions of your job, access an employment benefit, or participate in the application process?
Employue/Applicant Name:	 If you are requesting a specific accommodation, how will that accommodation be effective in allowing you to perform the functions of your job, access an employment benefit, or participate in
lob Mile:	the application process?
Work Location:	
Phone Number:	information Pertaining to Medical Documentations in the context of assessing an accommodation request, medical documentation may be needed to determine if the employee/applicant has a disability covered by the
Data Privacy Statement: This information may be used by the agency human resources representative, ADA Coordinator or designee, or any other individual who is authorized by the agency to receive medical information for purposes of providing reasonable accommodations under the ADA and MHRA. This information is necessary to determine whether you have a disability as defined by the ADA or MHRA, and to determine whether any reasonable accommodation can be made. The provision of this information is strictly voluntary; however, if you refuse to provide it, the agency may not have sufficient information to provide a reasonable accommodation.	ADA and to assist in locality are needed to determine it the employee/appriant has a basonity covered up the ADA and to assist in locality and effective accommodation. The ADA Coordinator or designee in each agency is tasked with collecting necessary medical documentation. In the event that medical documentation is needed, the employee/appliciant will be provided with the appropriate forms to submit to their medical provider. The employee/applicant has the responsibility to ensure that the requested information is returned to the ADA Coordinator or defignee in a timely manner.
DO NOT PROVIDE ANY INFORMATION THAT IS NOT RELATED TO YOUR REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION, DO NOT PROVIDE COPIES OF MEDICAL RECORDS.	This form does not cover, and the information to be disclosed should not contain, genetic information. "Genetic Information" includes: information about an individual's genetic tests; information about genetic tests of an individual's family members; information about the manifestation of a disease or disorder in an
A. Questions to clarify accommodation requested.	Individual's family members (family medical history); an individual's request for, or receipt of, genetic services, or the participation in clinical research that includes genetic services by the individual or a family
1. What specific accommodation are you requesting?	member of the individuals and genetic information of a fetus carried by an individual or by a pregnant woman who is a family member of the individual and the genetic information of any embryo legally held by the individual or family member using an assisted reproductive technology.
 If you are not sure what accommodation is needed, do you have any suggestions about what options we can explore? 	Employee/Applicant Signature:
a. Answer yes or no:	
b. If yes, please explain:	
B. Questions to document the reason for the accommodation request (please attach additional pages if necessory).	
 If you are an employee, what, if any, Job function are you having difficulty performing: or if you are an applicant, what portion of the application process are you having difficulty participating in? 	
Page 1 of 2 Rev. 4/2013	Page 2 of 2 Rev. 4/2019
10.5.4/2424	NET. 47 401 7

1

G. Notice Under the Americans with Disabilities Act

In accordance with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"), the Rochester Community and Technical College will not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities on the basis of disability in its services, programs, or activities.

Employment: Rochester Community and Technical College does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its hiring or employment practices and complies with all regulations promulgated by the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission under title I of the ADA.

Effective Communication: Rochester Community and Technical College will generally, upon request, provide appropriate aids and services leading to effective communication for qualified persons with disabilities so they can participate equally in College programs, services, and activities, including qualified sign language interpreters, documents in Braille, and other ways of making information and communications accessible to people who have speech, hearing, or vision impairments.

Modifications to Policies and Procedures: Rochester Community and Technical College will make all reasonable modifications to policies and programs to ensure that people with disabilities have an equal opportunity to enjoy all of its programs, services, and activities. For example, individuals with service animals are welcomed in College offices, even where pets are generally prohibited.

Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a modification of policies or procedures to participate in a program, service, or activity of Rochester Community and Technical College, should contact the ADA Coordinator (Travis Kromminga, <u>travis.kromminga@rctc.edu</u> or 507-280-2968) as soon as possible but no later than 48 hours before the scheduled event.

The ADA does not require the College to take any action that would fundamentally alter the nature of its programs or services, or impose an undue financial or administrative burden.

Complaints that a program, service, or activity of Rochester Community and Technical College is not accessible to persons with disabilities should be directed to the ADA Coordinator.

Rochester Community and Technical College will not place a surcharge on a particular individual with a disability or any group of individuals with disabilities to cover the cost of providing auxiliary aids/services or reasonable modifications of policy, such as retrieving items from locations that are open to the public but are not accessible to persons who use wheelchairs.

H. Rochester Community and Technical College Grievance Procedure Under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act

This Grievance Procedure is established to meet the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"). It may be used by anyone who wishes to file a complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in the provision of services, activities, programs, or benefits by Rochester Community and Technical College. The Statewide ADA Reasonable Accommodation policy governs employment-related complaints of disability discrimination.

The complaint should be in writing and contain information about the alleged discrimination such as name, address, phone number of complainant and location, date, and description of the problem. Alternative means of filing complaints, such as personal interviews or a tape recording of the complaint, will be made available for persons with disabilities upon request.

The complaint should be submitted by the grievant and/or his/her designee as soon as possible but no later than 60 calendar days after the alleged violation to the ADA Coordinator.

Within 15 calendar days after receipt of the complaint, the ADA Coordinator or designee will meet or communicate with the complainant to discuss the complaint and the possible resolutions. Within 15 calendar days of the meeting or communication, the ADA Coordinator or designee will respond in writing, and where appropriate, in a format accessible to the complainant. The response will explain the position of the College and offer options for substantive resolution of the complaint.

If the response by the ADA Coordinator or designee does not satisfactorily resolve the issue, the complainant and/or his/her designee may appeal the decision within 15 calendar days after receipt of the response to the ADA Grievance Coordinator or designee.

Within 15 calendar days after receipt of the appeal, the ADA Grievance Coordinator or designee will meet with the complainant to discuss the complaint and possible resolutions. Within 15 calendar days after the meeting, the ADA Grievance Coordinator or designee will respond in writing, and, where appropriate, in a format accessible to the complainant, with a final resolution of the complaint.

All written complaints received by the ADA Coordinator or designee, appeals to the ADA Grievance Coordinator or designee, and responses from these two offices will be retained by the college for at least three years. I. Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") Title II (non-employee) Reasonable Accommodation/Modification in Public Services, Programs or Activities Request Form

Interference Rechester Community and Technical College Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") Title II (non-employee) Reasonable Accommodation/Modification in Public Services, Programs or Activities Request Form Rochester Community and Technical College is committed to complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") and the Minnesco Human Rights Act ("MHRA"). The ADA Coordinator/Designee will review each request on an individualized, case-by-case, basis to determine whether an accommodation or modification can be made. Please do NOT send copies of medical records. The Agency is not authorized to have medical records and is not qualified to interpret medical records.	All requests for accommodation/modification will be evaluated individually and a response to your request will be provided within one week of receipt. Check this box to sign this request form electronically: By checking this box, I agree my electronic signature is the legal equivalent of my signature. Signature of RequestorDate OFFICE USE ONLY RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ACCOMMODATION/MODIFICATION Date request received:
General Information	The request for accommodation/modification is GRANTED. Below is a description of the
Date of Request:	accommodation/modification:
Person needing accommodation/modification Name: Address: Email:Phone:	The request for accommodation/modification is DENIED because:
Person making request (if different from person needing accommodation/modification)	The requester does not meet the essential eligibility requirements or qualifications for the program, service, or activity, without regard to disability.
Name <u>-</u> Email: Phone:	The requested accommodation/modification would impose an undue burden on the agency; and/or
Relationship to person needing accommodation/modification:	The requested accommodation/modification would fundamentally alter the nature of the service, program, or activity.
Accommodation Information	
Date accommodation/modification is needed:	Requester notified on: (date)
Address and/or room of accommodation/modification:	Additional notes:
Type of accommodation/modification requested (please be specific):	
How would you like to be notified of the status of your request?	ADA Coordinator:
🕐 Phone 💮 Email 💮 Writing 💮 Other (specify) <u>: A contract distribution of the sec</u>	Name_story is the state of the
if someone else has completed this form on your behalf and you want that person to be natified of	SignatureDate_incomentation
the status of your request, please initial here:	
Updared DA/21/2018	Cestand (8/17/055

J. Evacuation Procedure for Individuals with Disabilities or Otherwise in Need of Assistance

A copy of the college's weather and emergency evacuation plans can be found at:

https://www.rctc.edu/services/safety/emergency/

https://www.rctc.edu/services/safety/emergency/emergency-evacuation-procedures/ https://www.rctc.edu/services/safety/emergency/emergency-inclement-weather/ https://www.rctc.edu/services/safety/emergency/emergency-tornado/

Knowledge and preparation by both individuals needing assistance and those who don't is key to reducing the impact of emergencies. When developing a plan, safety needs should be determined on a case-by-case basis because it varies with each individual and building.

Everyone has a responsibility to develop their own personal emergency evacuation plan, this includes individuals with disabilities or individuals who will need assistance during evacuation. The Americans with Disabilities Act Coordinator or designee in each college will work to develop a plan and consult the appropriate building and safety personnel.

Directors, managers, and supervisors should review the emergency evacuation procedures with staff, including informing all staff that if additional assistance may be needed, and individuals with disabilities should contact the college contact(s) below to request the type of assistance they may need.

Name:	Scott McCullough
Title:	Director of Campus Safety and Security
Email:	scott.mccullough@rctc.edu
Phone:	507-529-2789

Rochester Community and Technical College 2020-2022 Affirmative Action Plan

60

Evacuation Options:

Individuals with disabilities have four basic evacuation options:

- Horizontal evacuation: Using building exits to the outside ground level or going into unaffected wings of multi-building complexes;
- Stairway evacuation: Using steps to reach ground level exits from building;
- Shelter in place: Unless danger is imminent, remain in a room with an exterior window, a telephone, and a solid or fire-resistant door. If the individual requiring special evacuation assistance remains in place, they should dial 911 immediately and report their location to emergency services, who will in turn relay that information to on-site responders. The shelter in place approach may be more appropriate for sprinkler protected buildings where an area of refuge is not nearby or available. It may be more appropriate for an individual who is alone when the alarm sounds;
- Area of rescue assistance: Identified areas that can be used as a means of egress for individuals with disabilities. These areas, located on floors above or below the building's exits, can be used by individuals with disabilities until rescue can be facilitated by emergency responders; and/or

Evacuation Procedures for Individuals with Mobility, Hearing, or Visual Disabilities:

Individuals with disabilities should follow the following procedures:

- Mobility disabilities (individuals who use wheelchairs or other personal mobility devices ("PMDs"): Individuals using wheelchairs should be accompanied to an area of rescue assistance by an employee or shelter in place when the alarm sounds. The safety and security staff will respond to each of the areas of rescue assistance every time a building evacuation is initiated to identify the individuals in these areas and notify to emergency responders how many individuals need assistance to safely evacuate.
- Mobility disabilities (individuals who do not use wheelchairs): Individuals with mobility disabilities, who are able to walk independently, may be able to negotiate stairs in an emergency with minor assistance. If danger is imminent, the individual should wait until the heavy traffic has cleared before attempting the stairs. If there is no immediate danger (detectable smoke, fire, or unusual odor), the individual with a disability may choose to wait at the area of rescue assistance until emergency responders arrive to assist them.
- Hearing disabilities: The college's buildings are equipped with fire alarm horns/strobes that sound the alarm and flash strobe lights. The strobe lights are for individuals with who are deaf and/or hard of hearing. Individuals with hearing disabilities may not notice or hear emergency alarms and will need to be alerted of emergency situations.
- Visual disabilities: The college's buildings are equipped with fire alarm horn/strobes that sound the alarm and flash strobe lights. The horn will alert individuals who are blind or have visual

disabilities of the need to evacuate. Most individuals with visual disabilities will be familiar with their immediate surroundings and frequently traveled routes. Since the emergency evacuation route is likely different form the common traveled route, individuals with visual disabilities may need assistance in evacuating. The assistant should offer assistance, and if accepted, guide the individual with a visual disability through the evacuation route.

Severe Weather Evacuation Options:

Individuals in need of assistance during an evacuation have three evacuation options based on their location in their building:

- Horizontal evacuation: If located on the ground or basement floor, severe weather shelter areas are located throughout each floor;
- Elevator evacuation: If there are no safe areas above the ground floor, the elevator may be used to evacuate to the ground or basement levels; and/or
- Shelter in Place: Seeking shelter in a designated severe weather shelter and remaining there until the all clear is used.

Appendix

Refer to the AAP Appendix 2020-2022.

Definitions of Terms Used in This Affirmative Action Plan

Applicant: "Applicant" means a person who has satisfied the minimum requirements for application established by the commissioner of management and budget (M.S. 43A.02, subd. 4).

Availability: an estimated percentage of qualified females, racial/minorities, or individuals with disabilities in the relevant labor market who are available for positions in a given job category at a Minnesota State college/university. The final availability is determined by considering two factors: the statistics from the outside labor market and the internal Minnesota State college/university workforce for the Affirmative Action Plan year.

Feeder job: staffed positions within the college/university that can be promoted and/or transferred into other EEO job categories.

Hiring goal: a numerical objective designed to correct an identified deficiency in the utilization of protected group members or Veterans. For example, the professional job category has identified underutilization and the availability is 30%, the goal (or hiring goal) for females in the job category is for 30% of the new hires/rehires and promotions for that Affirmative Action Plan year would be females. Goals/hiring goals should never be implemented as quotas, nor should they be used as criteria in decision-making regarding qualifications.

Job category: a group of jobs that are linked by a common purpose and skill set (or sometimes certificates/educational degrees) and are grounded on the job categories identified by the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).

Labor market area: a geographic area in which a college/university is seeking a worker in a particular goal unit and where there is an available supply of workers employed or seeking jobs in that goal unit.

Protected groups: females, persons with disabilities, and members of the following minorities: Black, Hispanic, Asian or Pacific Islander, and American Indian or Alaskan Native (<u>M.S. 43A.02, subd. 33</u>).

Snapshot: one particular point in time. A snapshot of a workforce is taken at one particular point in time as the basis for Affirmative Action Plan analyses because the workforce numbers are always fluctuating.

Supported Work Program: The state legislature established the program in 1987 to expand employment opportunities for people with significant disabilities. but has been expanded to include individuals who experience other significant disabilities, including, but not limited to, head injury, mental illness, and deaf blindness. Under the program, a supported worker must require ongoing support and may share a single position with up to two other supported work employees.

Underutilization: the representation of females, racial/ethnic minorities, or individuals with disabilities in a specific job category is less than reasonably would be expected given from workforce participation in the labor market area.

•

Agency Name: Rochester Community and Techni

Progress Toward Goals Report

Data Range: 07/01/2018-06/30/2020

FEMALES (Promotion includes both promoted into and within the job category.)							
Job Category		Prior AAP Year Goals Females %	Females Hired %	Female Promoted %	Actual Females Placement (%)	Females Goal Met?	
Officials/Administrators	64.00%	0.00%	0.00%	100.00%	16.67%	Yes	
Professionals	50.00%	0.00%	66.67%	33.33%	58.33%	Yes	
Technicians	50.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom	
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	0.00%	0.00%	16.67%	0.00%	16.67%	Yes	
Para-Professionals	63.64%	0.00%	77.78%	0.00%	77.78%	Yes	
Office/Clerical	86.36%	0.00%	91.67%	100.00%	92.31%	Yes	
Skilled Craft	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Service Maintenance	12.12%	24.00%	12.50%	0.00%	12.50%	No	
Faculty: Temporary			44.94%	0.00%	44.94%	Yes	
Faculty: Customized Training			41.67%	0.00%	41.67%	Yes	
Faculty: Probationary			100.00%	0.00%	100.00%	Yes	

Faculty: Unlimited		0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom
--------------------	--	-------	-------	-------	--------------

Racial/Ethnic Minorities (Minorities) (Promotion includes both promoted into and within the job category.)							
Job Category	Prior AAP Total Minorities %	Prior AAP Year Goals Minorities %	Minorities Hired %	Minorities Promoted %	Actual Minorities Placement (%)	Minorities Goal Met?	
Officials/Administrators	14.29%	0.00%	40.00%	0.00%	33.33%	Yes	
Professionals	8.33%	14.00%	22.22%	0.00%	16.67%	Yes	
Technicians	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom	
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	25.00%	0.00%	16.67%	0.00%	16.67%	Yes	
Para-Professionals	4.55%	9.00%	11.11%	0.00%	11.11%	Yes	
Office/Clerical	4.55%	7.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No	
Skilled Craft	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Service Maintenance	15.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Faculty: Temporary			6.74%	0.00%	6.74%	Yes	
Faculty: Customized Training			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Faculty: Probationary			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Faculty: Unlimited			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom	

Individuals with Disabilities (Promotion includes both promoted into and within the job category.)							
Job Category	Prior AAP Total Individuals with Disabilities %	Prior AAP Year Goals Individuals with Disabilities %	Individuals with Disabilities Hired %	Individuals with Disabilities Promoted %	Actual Individuals with Disabilities Placement (%)	Individuals with Disabilities Goal Met?	
Officials/Administrators	7.14%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Professionals	4.76%	7.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No	
Technicians	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom	
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	25.00%	0.00%	16.67%	0.00%	16.67%	Yes	
Para-Professionals	9.09%	0.00%	22.22%	0.00%	22.22%	Yes	
Office/Clerical	2.27%	5.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No	
Skilled Craft	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Service Maintenance	9.09%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Faculty: Temporary			1.12%	0.00%	1.12%	Yes	
Faculty: Customized Training			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Faculty: Probationary			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes	
Faculty: Unlimited			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom	

Veterans (Promotion includes both promoted into and within the job category.)						
Job Category	Prior AAP Total Veterans %	Prior AAP Year Goals Veterans %	Veterans Hired %	Veterans Promoted %	Actual Veterans Placement (%)	Veterans Goal Met?
Officials/Administrators	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes
Professionals	1.19%	4.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No
Technicians	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	0.00%	0.00%	33.33%	0.00%	33.33%	Yes
Para-Professionals	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes
Office/Clerical	2.27%	5.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No
Skilled Craft	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes
Service Maintenance	6.06%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes
Faculty: Temporary			3.37%	0.00%	3.37%	Yes
Faculty: Customized Training			8.33%	0.00%	8.33%	Yes
Faculty: Probationary			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Yes
Faculty: Unlimited			0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	No Hire/Prom

Agency Name: Rochester Community and Technical College

Separation Analysis

Data Range Dates: 07/01/2018-06/30/2020

Note: ¹The percentages by protected group within a separation type

Total Separations					
Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	1.69%	-	100.00%	-	-
Layoff	1.69%	100.00%	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	44.07%	46.15%	19.23%	7.69%	3.85%
Retirement	25.42%	53.33%	6.67%	13.33%	13.33%
Termination	27.12%	87.50%	6.25%	6.25%	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	59.32%	13.56%	8.47%	5.08%

Officials/Administrators									
Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹				
Death	-	-	-	-	-				
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-				

Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	33.33%	-	50.00%	-	-
Retirement	16.67%	100.00%	-	-	-
Termination	50.00%	100.00%	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	66.67%	16.67%	-	-

Professionals					
Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	63.64%	42.86%	28.57%	14.29%	-
Retirement	18.18%	100.00%	-	50.00%	-
Termination	18.18%	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	45.45%	18.18%	18.18%	-

Technicians

Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	-	-	-	-	-
Retirement	9.09%	-	-	-	-
Termination	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	-	-	-	-

Protective Service: Non-Sworn									
		Female % within Each	*Minority % within Each	Individuals with Disabilities % within	Veterans % within				
Separation Type	Total %	Sep Type ¹	Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹				
Death	-	-	-	-	-				
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-				
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-				
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-				
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-				
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-				
Resignation	200.00%	50.00%	-	-	-				
Retirement	-	-	-	-	-				
Termination	-	-	-	-	-				
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-				
Total Separations	100.00%	50.00%	-	-	-				

Para-Professionals								
		Female %	*Minority %	Individuals with				
Separation Type	Total %	within Each	within Each	Disabilities % within	Veterans % within			
		Sep Type ¹	Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹			
Death	-	-	-	-	-			
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-			
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-			
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-			

Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	20.00%	100.00%	-	-	-
Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Termination	80.00%	100.00%	25.00%	25.00%	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	100.00%	20.00%	20.00%	-

Office/Clerical					
		Female %	*Minority %	Individuals with	
Separation Type	Total %	within Each	within Each	Disabilities % within	Veterans % within
		Sep Type ¹	Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	42.86%	83.33%	16.67%	-	-
Retirement	7.14%	-	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%
Termination	50.00%	100.00%	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	85.71%	14.29%	7.14%	7.14%

Skilled Craft

Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	50.00%	-	-	-	-
Retirement	50.00%	-	-	-	-
Termination	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	-	-	-	-

Service Maintenance								
		Female %	*Minority %	Individuals with				
Separation Type	Total %	within Each	within Each	Disabilities % within	Veterans % within			
		Sep Type ¹	Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹	Each Sep Type ¹			
Death	-	-	-	-	-			
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-			
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-			
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-			
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-			
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-			
Resignation	80.00%	-	-	25.00%	25.00%			
Retirement	20.00%	-	-	-	100.00%			
Termination	-	-	-	-	-			

Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	-	-	20.00%	40.00%

Faculty: Temporary					
Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death		Зертуре	Зертуре		сасп зер туре
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	40.00%	50.00%	50.00%	-	-
Retirement	60.00%	66.67%	-	-	-
Termination	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	60.00%	20.00%	-	-

Faculty: Customized Training					
Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-

Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	-	-	-	-	-
Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Termination	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	-	-	-	-	-

Faculty: Probationary					
Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Layoff	-	-	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	-	-	-	-	-
Retirement	-	-	-	-	-
Termination	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	-	-	-	-	-

Faculty: Unlimited

Separation Type	Total %	Female % within Each Sep Type ¹	*Minority % within Each Sep Type ¹	Individuals with Disabilities % within Each Sep Type ¹	Veterans % within Each Sep Type ¹
Death	-	-	-	-	-
Dismissal	-	-	-	-	-
Early/Enhanced Retirement	12.50%	-	100.00%	-	-
Layoff	12.50%	100.00%	-	-	-
Non-Renewal/Non-Cert	-	-	-	-	-
Reduction in Workforce	-	-	-	-	-
Resignation	12.50%	100.00%	-	-	-
Retirement	62.50%	60.00%	-	-	-
Termination	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer	-	-	-	-	-
Total Separations	100.00%	62.50%	12.50%	-	-

Agency Name: Rochester Community and Technical College

Job Category Analysis: Listing of Job Titles

Data as of: 04/01/2020

Officials/Administrators		
Job Code	Job Title	
000139	Business Manager 2	
001316	Information Director	
002453	Information Mgmt Srvcs Div Dir	
007828	MnSCU President IV	
007855	MnSCU Admin-5	
007856	MnSCU Admin-6	
007857	MnSCU Admin-7	
007859	MnSCU Admin-9	
end of data	end of data	

Professionals			
Job Code	Job Title		
000006	Management Analyst 1		
000140	Buyer 1		
000228	Dentist		
000498	Human Resources Specialist 1		
000647	Information Officer 2		
000774	Accounting Technician		
000776	Physical Plan Director		
000893	Management Analyst 3		
000979	Accounting Officer Inter		
001486	Human Resources Technician 2		
001528	Management Analyst 2		
001545	Community College Registrar Sr		
001880	Registered Nurse Senior		
002115	Management Analyst Supv 2		
003116	Facilities Coordinator		
003220	Mgmt Info Systems Supv 2		
003424	Small Buiness Asst Coordinator		
003583	Information Technology Spec 1		
003584	Information Technology Spec 2		
003585	Information Technology Spec 3		
003586	Information Technology Spec 4		
003689	State Prog Admin Supervisor Sr		
007012	MnSCU Academic Professional 1		
007013	MnSCU Academic Professional 3		
007020	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 1		
007022	MnSCU Academic Professional 2		
007023	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 2		

007024	MnSCU Academic Professional 4
007205	Customized Training Rep
007847	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 3
end of data	end of data

Technicians		
Job Code	Job Title	
000753	Graphic Arts Specialist	
001021	Theatre Technician	
003834	Electronic Systems Specialist	
end of data	end of data	

Protective Service: Non-Sworn		
Job Code	Job Title	
003458	Campus Security Officer	
end of data	end of data	

Para-professionals		
Job Code	Job Title	
000308	Library Technician	
000865	College Laboratory Assistant 1	
002632	College Laboratory Assistant 2	
end of data	end of data	

Office/Clerical		
Job Code	Job Title	
000148	Cashier	
000293	Executive 2	
001604	College Bookstore Supervisor	
003475	Student Services Assistant Sr	
003627	Office & Admin Special	
003628	Office & Admin Special Interme	
003629	Office & Admin Special Senior	
003630	Office & Admin Special Prin	
003631	Central Svs Admin Special	
003632	Central Svcs Admin Spec Inter	
003635	Customer Svc Special	
003636	Customer Svc Special Intermed	
003637	Customer Svc Special Senior	
003638	Customer Svc Special Principal	
end of data	end of data	

Skilled Craf	Skilled Craft		
Job Code	Job Title		
000525	Plant Mntc Engineer		
003452	Electrician Master Record		
end of data	end of data		

Service Ma	intenance
Job Code	Job Title
000328	Groundskeeper
000805	Athletic Equipment Manager
000860	Building Services Supv
001357	General Repair Worker
001725	General Maintenance Worker
end of data	end of data

Faculty: Te	Faculty: Temporary				
Job Code	Job Title				
007018	Community College Faculty				
007845	Technical College Faculty				
end of data	end of data				

Faculty: Cu	Faculty: Customized Training		
Job Code	Job Title		
007845	Technical College Faculty		
end of data	end of data		

Faculty: Pro	Faculty: Probationary		
Job Code	Job Title		
007018	Community College Faculty		
007845	Technical College Faculty		
end of data	end of data		

Faculty: Un	Faculty: Unlimited		
Job Code	Job Title		
007018	Community College Faculty		
007845	Technical College Faculty		
end of data	end of data		

Institution Name:

Feeder Jobs and Feeder Group Analysis

Data as of:

04/01/2020

Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
000139	Officials/Administrators	Business Manager 2	0.67%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
001316	Officials/Administrators	Information Director	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
002453	Officials/Administrators	Information Mgmt Srvcs Div Dir	0.00%	0.67%	0.00%	0.00%
003220	Professionals	Mgmt Info Systems Supv 2	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003586	Professionals	Information Technology Spec 4	0.00%	0.67%	0.00%	0.67%
003689	Professionals	State Prog Admin Supervisor Sr	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007013	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Professional 3	2.01%	0.67%	1.34%	0.00%
007018	Faculty	Community College Faculty	32.21%	4.03%	0.00%	0.67%
007020	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 1	0.67%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007023	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 2	0.67%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007024	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Professional 4	1.34%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007845	Faculty	Technical College Faculty	16.78%	0.00%	0.67%	0.67%
007847	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 3	1.34%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007855	Officials/Administrators	MnSCU Admin-5	1.34%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007856	Officials/Administrators	MnSCU Admin-6	0.67%	0.00%	0.67%	0.00%
007857	Officials/Administrators	MnSCU Admin-7	0.67%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
007859	Officials/Administrators	MnSCU Admin-9	0.67%	0.00%	0.67%	0.00%
end of data	end of data	end of data				
		Total	59.06%	6.04%	3.36%	2.01%

lob Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
000006	Professionals	Management Analyst 1	2.30%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
000140	Professionals	Buyer 1	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
000498	Professionals	Human Resources Specialist 1	1.15%	0.00%	1.15%	0.00
000647	Professionals	Information Officer 2	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
000753	Technicians	Graphic Arts Specialist	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
000774	Professionals	Accounting Technician	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
000776	Professionals	Physical Plan Director	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
000865	Para-Professionals	College Laboratory Assistant 1	2.30%	0.00%	1.15%	0.00
000893	Professionals	Management Analyst 3	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
000979	Professionals	Accounting Officer Inter	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
001486	Professionals	Human Resources Technician 2	1.15%	0.00%	1.15%	0.00
001528	Professionals	Management Analyst 2	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
001545	Professionals	Community College Registrar Sr	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
001880	Professionals	Registered Nurse Senior	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
002632	Para-Professionals	College Laboratory Assistant 2	10.34%	0.00%	1.15%	0.00
003116	Professionals	Facilities Coordinator	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
003424	Professionals	Small Buiness Asst Coordinator	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
003583	Professionals	Information Technology Spec 1	1.15%	1.15%	0.00%	0.00
003584	Professionals	Information Technology Spec 2	0.00%	1.15%	0.00%	0.00
003585	Professionals	Information Technology Spec 3	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	1.15
003586	Professionals	Information Technology Spec 4	0.00%	1.15%	0.00%	1.15
003834	Technicians	Electronic Systems Specialist	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
07012	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Professional 1	18.39%	4.60%	1.15%	0.00
07013	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Professional 3	3.45%	1.15%	2.30%	0.00
07020	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 1	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
07022	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Professional 2	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
07023	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Supervisor 2	1.15%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
007024	Professionals	MnSCU Academic Professional 4	2.30%			0.00

end of data	end of data	end of data				
		Total	52.87%	9.20%	8.05%	2.30%

Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
000148	Office/Clerical	Cashier	1.79%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00
000753	Technicians	Graphic Arts Specialist	1.79%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
000865	Para-Professionals	College Laboratory Assistant 1	3.57%	0.00%	1.79%	0.009
001021	Technicians	Theatre Technician	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
002632	Para-Professionals	College Laboratory Assistant 2	16.07%	0.00%	1.79%	0.00%
003627	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special	17.86%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003628	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Interme	12.50%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003629	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Senior	3.57%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003630	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Prin	3.57%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003631	Office/Clerical	Central Svs Admin Special	1.79%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003632	Office/Clerical	Central Svcs Admin Spec Inter	3.57%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003635	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special	5.36%	0.00%	1.79%	0.00%
003636	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Intermed	1.79%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003637	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Senior	3.57%	1.79%	1.79%	1.79%
003638	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Principal	1.79%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003834	Technicians	Electronic Systems Specialist	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
end of data	end of data	end of data				
		Tot	al 78.57%	1.79%	7.14%	1.799

Protective	Service: Non-Sworn						
Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title		Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
003458 end of data	Protective Service: Non-sw end of data	Campus Security Officer end of data		0.00%	0.00%	33.33%	66.67%
	1	1	Total	0.00%	0.00%	33.33%	66.67%

Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
000148	Office/Clerical	Cashier	2.22%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
000308	Para-Professionals	Library Technician	4.44%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
000865	Para-Professionals	College Laboratory Assistant 1	4.44%	0.00%	2.22%	0.00%
003627	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special	22.22%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003628	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Interme	15.56%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003629	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Senior	4.44%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003630	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Prin	4.44%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003631	Office/Clerical	Central Svs Admin Special	2.22%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003632	Office/Clerical	Central Svcs Admin Spec Inter	4.44%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
003635	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special	6.67%	0.00%	2.22%	0.00%
003636	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Intermed	2.22%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
003637	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Senior	4.44%	2.22%	2.22%	2.22%
003638	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Principal	2.22%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009
end of data	end of data	end of data				
		Tota	80.00%	2.22%	6.67%	2.22%

Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %	
000148	Office/Clerical	Cashier	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009	
000293	Office/Clerical	Executive 2	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009	
001604	Office/Clerical	College Bookstore Supervisor	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
001725	Service Maintenance	General Maintenance Worker	4.84%	6.45%	3.23%	0.00%	
003475	Office/Clerical	Student Services Assistant Sr	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003627	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special	16.13%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003628	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Interme	11.29%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003629	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Senior	3.23%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003630	Office/Clerical	Office & Admin Special Prin	3.23%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003631	Office/Clerical	Central Svs Admin Special	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003632	Office/Clerical	Central Svcs Admin Spec Inter	3.23%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003635	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special	4.84%	0.00%	1.61%	0.00%	
003636	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Intermed	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
003637	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Senior	3.23%	1.61%	1.61%	1.619	
003638	Office/Clerical	Customer Svc Special Principal	1.61%	0.00%	0.00%	0.009	
end of data	end of data	end of data					
		Tota	al 61.29%	8.06%	6.45%	1.619	

Skilled Cra Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
000328	Service Maintenance	Groundskeeper	0.00%	3.03%	0.00%	3.03%
000525	Skilled Craft	Plant Mntc Engineer	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
000860	Service Maintenance	Building Services Supv	3.03%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
001357	Service Maintenance	General Repair Worker	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
001725	Service Maintenance	General Maintenance Worker	9.09%	12.12%	6.06%	0.00%
003452 end of data	Skilled Craft end of data	Electrician Master Record end of data	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
		Tot	al 12.12%	15.15%	6.06%	3.03%

Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title	Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %
000328	Service Maintenance	Groundskeeper	0.00%	3.33%	0.00%	3.33%
000805	Service Maintenance	Athletic Equipment Manager	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
000860	Service Maintenance	Building Services Supv	3.33%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
001357	Service Maintenance	General Repair Worker	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
001725 end of data	Service Maintenance end of data	General Maintenance Worker end of data	10.00%	13.33%	6.67%	0.00%
	•	Tot	tal 13.33%	16.67%	6.67%	3.33%

Faculty: Temporary												
Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title		Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %					
007018 007845 end of data	Temporary/Cust. Training Temporary/Cust. Training end of data	Community College Faculty Technical College Faculty end of data		42.11% 20.18%	5.26% 0.00%		0.88% 0.88%					
		1	Total	62.28%	5.26%	0.88%	1.75%					

Faculty: Customized Training												
Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title		Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %					
007018	Temporary/Cust. Training	Community College Faculty		41.38%	5.17%	0.00%	0.86%					
007845 end of data	Temporary/Cust. Training end of data	Technical College Faculty end of data		21.55%	0.00%	0.86%	0.86%					
	1		Total	62.93%	5.17%	0.86%	1.72%					

Faculty: Probationary												
Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title		Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %					
007018	Temporary/Cust. Training	Community College Faculty		41.38%	5.17%	0.00%	0.86%					
007845 end of data	Temporary/Cust. Training end of data	Technical College Faculty end of data		21.55%	0.00%	0.86%	0.86%					
	- -	·	Total	62.93%	5.17%	0.86%	1.72%					

Faculty: Unlimited												
Job Code	EEO Category	Job Title		Weighted Female %	Weighted Minority %	Weighted Indv w/Disabl %	Weighted Veterans %					
007018	Faculty: Probationary	Community College Faculty		42.86%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%					
007845	Temporary/Cust. Training	Technical College Faculty		42.86%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%					
end of data	end of data	end of data										
<u>I</u>		•	Total	85.71%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%					

Institution Name: Rochester Community and Technical College

Determining Availability (note: *Minority= racial/ethnic minority; **Indiv. W Disabl = Individuals with Disabilities)

Officials/Administrators	fficials/Administrators												
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female			Raw Statistics Veterans	Statistics	Weighted Statistics *Minority	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	-		Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio		
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	70.00%	40.01%	25.79%	4.78%	6.41%	28.01%	18.05%	3.34%	4 49%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 80% from external and 20% from internal movements. Given the current situation and budget affects, we will likely see an increase in temporary/promotional opportunities due to limited hiring.		
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	30.00%	59.06%	6.04%	3.36%	2.01%	17.72%	1.81%	1.01%	0.60%	Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.			
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% →	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	45.73%	19.86%	4.35%	5.09%				

Professionals											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female		**Indiv.		Statistics	•	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl		Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	43.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	16.71%	4.11%	1.74%	2.13%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 43% from external and 57% from internal movements. Given the current sitaution and budget affects, we will ikely see limited hiring.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	57.00%	52.87%	9.20%	8.05%	2.30%	30.14%	5.24%	4.59%		Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	46.85%	9.35%	6.33%	3.44%		

Technicians											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female		Raw Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	**Indiv.	Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	Statistics **Indiv. w	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl		Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	50.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	19.43%	4.78%	2.02%	2.47%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	We have had no appoints in this job category ove rthe past two years. Given the current sitaution and budget affects, we will ikely see limited hiring.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	50.00%	78.57%	1.79%	7.14%	1.79%	39.29%	0.89%	3.57%	0.89%	Employee workforce for the job groups that constitute feeders to this job group.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	58.72%	5.67%	5.59%	3.36%		

Protective Service: Non-S	worn										
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female		Raw Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	**Indiv.	Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority		Disabl	Source of Statistics	Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	90.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	34.98%	8.60%	3.64%	4.45%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 100% from external and 0% from internal movements. Given the current situation and budget affects, we will likely see limited hiring.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	10.00%	0.00%	0.00%	33.33%	66.67%	0.00%	0.00%	3.33%	6.67%	Employee workforce for the job groups that constitute feeders to this job group. These numbers reflect a snapshot in time. We have frequest turnover in this small empoyee group. Many times we have temporary employees to cover the gap and this ratio reflects promotional opportunity from temporary to permanent.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	34.98%	8.60%	6.97%	11.12%		

Para-Professionals											
	Weight	Raw Statistics	Raw Statistics		Raw Statistics **Indiv.	Weighted Statistics	Weighted Statistics		Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w		Reasons for External and Internal Weight
Factor	Ratio	Female			w Disabl	Female	*Minority		Disabl	Source of Statistics	Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	90.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	34.98%	8.60%	3.64%	4 45%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 100% from external and 0% from internal movements. Given the current situation and budget affects, we will likely see limited hiring.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	10.00%	80.00%	2.22%	6.67%	2.22%	8.00%	0.22%	0.67%		Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	42.98%	8.83%	4.31%	4.67%		

Office/Clerical	ice/Clerical											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female	Raw Statistics *Minority	**Indiv.	**Indiv.	Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	**Indiv. w	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	Source of Statistics	Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio	
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	60.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	23.32%	5.74%	2.43%	2.97%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 67% from external and 33% from internal movements. Given the current sitaution and budget affects, we will ikely see limited hiring.	
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	40.00%	61.29%	8.06%	6.45%	1.61%	24.52%	3.23%	2.58%	0.65%	Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.		
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	47.83%	8.96%	5.01%	3.61%			

Skilled Craft											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female			**Indiv.	Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	Statistics **Indiv. w	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl		Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	10.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	3.89%	0.96%	0.40%	0.49%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 0% from external and100% from internal movements. Given the current situation and budget affects, we will likely see limited hiring.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	90.00%	12.12%	15.15%	6.06%	3.03%	10.91%	13.64%	5.45%	2.73%	Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	14.80%	14.59%	5.86%	3.22%		

Service Maintenance											
	Weight	Raw Statistics	Raw Statistics		Raw Statistics **Indiv.	Weighted Statistics	Weighted Statistics		Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w		Reasons for External and Internal Weight
Factor	Ratio	Female			w Disabl	Female	*Minority	Disabl	Disabl	Source of Statistics	Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	80.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	31.09%	7.65%	3.24%	3.96%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 89% from external and 11% from internal movements. Given the current sitaution and budget affects, we will likely see limited hiring.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	20.00%	13.33%	16.67%	6.67%	3.33%	2.67%	3.33%	1.33%	0.67%	Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	ıl Avail %	33.76%	10.98%	4.57%	4.62%		

Faculty: Temporary											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female		**Indiv.		Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	**Indiv. w	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	Source of Statistics	Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	90.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	34.98%	8.60%	3.64%	4.45%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	We have not kept historic data for hiring temporary faculty as employees who have permanent jobs and elect to teach have not been moved into an addidtional category. In
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	10.00%	62.28%	5.26%	0.88%	1.75%	6.23%	0.53%	0.09%		Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	41.20%	9.13%	3.73%	4.62%		

Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female	Raw Statistics *Minority	**Indiv.	**Indiv.	Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	**Indiv. w	Statistics	Source of Statistics	Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	90.00%	38.86%	9.56%	4.04%	4.94%	34.98%	8.60%	3.64%	4 459/	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	We have not kept historic data for hiring customized training faculty as employees who have permanent jobs and elect to teach have not been moved into an addidtional category. Ir
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	10.00%	62.93%	5.17%	0.86%	1.72%	6.29%	0.52%	0.09%	0.17%	Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	41.27%	9.12%	3.73%	4.62%		

Faculty: Probationary											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female		**Indiv.		Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	Statistics **Indiv. w	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	Source of Statistics	Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	95.00%	40.01%	25.79%	4.78%	6.41%	38.01%	24.50%	4.54%	6.09%	The American Community Survey (2014-2018) complied by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition. COC and COC Title: See Appendix B for list of titles used for each EEO- 4 Category.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 67% from external and 33% from internal movements. Given the current sitaution and budget affects, we will likely see limited hiring. We are considering temporary faculty who move to a probationary position as internal hires.
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	5.00%	62.93%	5.17%	0.86%	1.72%	3.15%	0.26%	0.04%		Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	41.16%	24.76%	4.58%	6.18%		

Faculty: Unlimited											
Factor	Weight Ratio	Raw Statistics Female			Raw Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	Weighted Statistics Female	Weighted Statistics *Minority	Statistics **Indiv. w	Weighted Statistics **Indiv. w Disabl	Source of Statistics	Reasons for External and Internal Weight Ratio
1: External - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic minorities with requisite skills in the reasonable recruitment area.	20.00%	40.01%	25.79%	4.78%	6.41%	8.00%	5.16%	0.96%	1.28%	Region: See header row for region, and reference Appendix A for deifinition.	Our two year historical appoints in this job category shows 0% from external and 100% from internal movements. Given the current situation and budget affects, we will likely see limited hiring. Also, faculty who are hired into unlimited positions, must serve a probatoinary period; so, in fact, start as external. We consider them to be internal when they move from
2: Internal - Percentage of females or racial/ethnic among those promotable, transferable, and trainable with your agency.	80.00%	85.71%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	68.57%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	Employee workforce for the job classifications that constitute feeders to this job category.	
The value of weight must equal to 100.00% $ ightarrow$	100.00%			Fina	al Avail %	76.57%	5.16%	0.96%	1.28%		

Institution Name: Rochester Community and Technical College Utilization Analysis:

Comparing Incumbency to Availability, Establishing Placement Goals, and Timetable

FEMALES				
Job Categories	% of Female Employees in the Job Category	Female Availability %	Female Establish Goals?	If Yes, Goals for FY 2020-2022
Officials/Administrators	42.86%	45.73%	Monitor	
Professionals	50.00%	46.85%		
Technicians	33.33%	58.72%	Monitor	
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	0.00%	34.98%	Yes	34.98%
Para-Professionals	61.90%	42.98%		
Office/Clerical	92.11%	47.83%		
Skilled Craft	0.00%	14.80%	Monitor	
Service Maintenance	13.33%	33.76%	Yes	33.76%
Faculty: Temporary	62.28%	41.20%		
Faculty: Customized Training	100.00%	41.27%		
Faculty: Probationary	85.71%	41.16%		
Faculty: Unlimited	53.57%	76.57%	Yes	76.57%
Totals	55.63%			

RACIAL/ETHNIC MINORITIES											
Job Categories	% of Racial/Ethnic Minority Employees in the Job Category	Racial/Ethnic Minority Availability %	Racial/Ethnic Minority Establish Goals?	If Yes, Goals for FY 2020-2022							
Officials/Administrators	14.29%	19.86%	Monitor								
Professionals	11.54%	9.35%									
Technicians	0.00%	5.67%	Monitor								
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	0.00%	8.60%	Monitor								
Para-Professionals	0.00%	8.83%	Yes	8.83%							
Office/Clerical	2.63%	8.96%	Yes	8.96%							
Skilled Craft	0.00%	14.59%	Monitor								
Service Maintenance	16.67%	10.98%									
Faculty: Temporary	5.26%	9.13%	Yes	9.13%							
Faculty: Customized Training	0.00%	9.12%	Monitor								
Faculty: Probationary	0.00%	24.76%	Yes	24.76%							
Faculty: Unlimited	6.25%	5.16%									
Totals	7.04%										

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISAB	ILITIES			
Job Categories	% of Individuals with Disabilities Employees in the Job Category	Individuals with Disabilities State Goals %	Individuals with Disabilities Establish Goals?	If Yes, Goals for FY 2020-2022
Officials/Administrators	14.29%	4.35%		
Professionals	6.41%	6.33%	Monitor	
Technicians	0.00%	5.59%	Monitor	
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	33.33%	6.97%	Monitor	
Para-Professionals	9.52%	4.31%		
Office/Clerical	5.26%	5.01%	Monitor	
Skilled Craft	0.00%	5.86%	Monitor	
Service Maintenance	6.67%	4.57%	Monitor	
Faculty: Temporary	0.88%	3.73%	Yes	3.73%
Faculty: Customized Training	0.00%	3.73%	Monitor	
Faculty: Probationary	0.00%	4.58%	Monitor	
Faculty: Unlimited	3.57%	0.96%		
Totals	4.46%			

Veterans				
Job Categories	% of Individuals with Disabilities Employees in the Job Category	Individuals with Disabilities State Goals %	Individuals with Disabilities Establish Goals?	If Yes, Goals for FY 2020-2022
Officials/Administrators	0.00%	5.09%	Monitor	
Professionals	2.56%	3.44%	Monitor	
Technicians	0.00%	3.36%	Monitor	
Protective Service: Non-Sworn	66.67%	11.12%		
Para-Professionals	0.00%	4.67%	Monitor	
Office/Clerical	2.63%	3.61%	Monitor	
Skilled Craft	0.00%	3.22%	Monitor	
Service Maintenance	3.33%	4.62%	Monitor	
Faculty: Temporary	1.75%	4.62%	Yes	4.62%
Faculty: Customized Training	0.00%	4.62%	Monitor	
Faculty: Probationary	0.00%	6.18%	Monitor	
Faculty: Unlimited	1.79%	1.28%	Monitor	
Totals	2.35%			